

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND THE

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA TEACHERS ASSOCIATION/CTA/NEA

JULY 1, 2024 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2027

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article		ge
I	AGREEMENT	.1
II	RECOGNITION	2
111	RIGHTS OF THE EXCLUSIVE REPRESENTATIVE MEMBERSHIP DUES DEDUCTION HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION MONTHLY P-BVUSD - P-BVTA CONSULTATIONS PERSONNEL POLICY CHANGES COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT	3 3 .4 4
IV	HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT OVERNIGHT ENVIRONMENTAL CAMP JOB-SHARING PROGRAM	10
V	CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEE EVALUATION PROCEDURES GENERAL PROVISIONS	13 14 14
VI	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	16 17 17 18 18
VII	LEAVES OF ABSENCE SICK LEAVE REGULAR SICK LEAVE PREGNANCY LEAVE EXTENDED SICK LEAVE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT/CALIFORNIA FAMILY RIGHTS ACT PERSONAL NECESSITY LEAVE PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE	.20 .20 .20 .20 .21 .21

	BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	.21
	COMPELLING PERSONAL LEAVE	.21
	UNPAID PERSONAL LEAVE	
	JURY DUTY	
	INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT/ILLNESS LEAVE	
	CHILD-BONDING LEAVE	
	PARENTAL LEAVE	
	UNPAID EXTENDED LEAVE	
	JUDICIAL/SUBPOENA LEAVE	
	MILITARY LEAVE	
	SABBATICAL LEAVE	
	CATASTROPHIC LEAVE/CONTINUATION OF PAY STATUS	
	CATASTROPHIC LEAVE/CONTINUATION OF PAT STATUS	.20
VIII	SAFETY AND MISCELLANEOUS CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT	
	SAFE WORKING CONDITIONS	.28
	STUDENT DISCIPLINE	
	SUPPORT AND ASSISTANCE	.28
	PERSONAL PROPERTY PROTECTION	
	TUBERCULIN TESTS OR SCREENINGS	.28
	NOTIFICATIONS TO TEACHERS	
IX	TRANSFERS/REASSIGNMENTS	30
173	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
	ANNUAL REASSIGNMENT PROCESS	
	ANNUAL TRANSFER POSTING PROCESS	
	VOLUNTARY TRANSFER/REASSIGNMENT	
	INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER/REASSIGNMENT	
	NOTIFICATION, PREPARATION AND ORIENTATION	
		34
Х	CLASS SIZE	
	MAXIMUM CLASS SIZE ENROLLMENT	
	LEVELING	.37
XI	HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS	38
	HEALTH INSURANCE PACKAGE	
	BENEFITS UPON RETIREMENT	
XII	COMPENSATION	40
ЛП	CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULES	10
	ADVANCED DEGREE AND CERTIFICATE COMPENSATION	
	CAREER LONGEVITY PAY (ANNIVERSARY INCREMENT)	
	SALARY SCHEDULE ADVANCEMENT	41

44
44
44
44
45
45

APPENDICES

- A-1 CERTIFICATED GENERAL EDUCATION TEACHER ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE (2023-2024)
- A-2 CERTIFICATED SPECIAL EDUCATION TEACHER ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE (2023-2024)
- A-3 CERTIFICATED ACADEMIC COACH ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE (2023-2024)
- A-4 CERTIFICATED INTERVENTION COUNSELOR SALARY SCHEDULE (2023-2024)
- A-5 CERTIFICATED SPEECH PATHOLOGIST SALARY SCHEDULE (2023-2024)
- A-6 CERTIFICATED SPEECH SPECIALIST SALARY SCHEDULE (2023-2024)
- A-7 CERTIFICATED SCHOOL NURSE SALARY SCHEDULE (2023-2024)
- B ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION & CERTIFICATED EXTRA DUTY WORK
- C TERMS DEFINED
- D pbvU EXTRA DUTY PAY FORMULAS
- E GRIEVANCE FORMS
- F PERFORMANCE NOTIFICATION FORM, PART I: WRITTEN IMPROVEMENT PLAN
- G-1 VOLUNTARY TRANSFER AND REASSIGNMENT FORM
- G-2 SUMMER CERTIFICATED TRANSFER OR REASSIGNMENT FORM

ARTICLE I AGREEMENT

A. The articles and provisions contained herein constitute a bilateral and binding agreement ("Agreement") by and between the PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT ("District") and the PANAMA-BUENA VISTA TEACHERS ASSOCIATION/CTA/NEA ("Association" or "Exclusive Representative"), an employee organization.

B. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Government Code §§3540 through 3549 ("Act").

C. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, **2024**, through June 30, **2027**. For the **2025-2026 and 2026-2027** school years, the parties agree to reopen Article XI, HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS and Article XII, COMPENSATION, plus up to two (2) other articles designated by either party. For the **2025-2026 school year, either party may demand to bargain Article X, CLASS SIZE and it would not count against either party's discretionary reopeners.**

D. The District and Association agree that no bargaining unit employee shall be discriminated against on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, transgender status, veteran or military status, or any other class protected under California or federal law, membership (or non-membership) in an employee organization, or participation (or non-participation) in the activities of an employee organization. Implementation of the terms of this Agreement shall not be done in an arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory manner.

ARTICLE II RECOGNITION

A. The District recognizes the Association as the Exclusive Representative of all certificated employees of the District in the bargaining unit as set forth below:

1. The bargaining unit shall include all permanent, probationary, and temporary employees in the following designated positions:

Academic Coach General Education Teacher Intervention Counselor School Nurse Special Education Teacher School Psychologist Speech Pathologist Speech Specialist Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) Teacher: Waiver, Intern, PIP, STSP, Emergency CLAD/BCLAD/GELAP/SELAP

2. The bargaining unit shall not include certificated management, supervisory and confidential employees as defined by the Act, substitute, or classified employees.

ARTICLE III RIGHTS OF THE EXCLUSIVE REPRESENTATIVE

A. <u>Membership Dues Deduction.</u>

1. Any bargaining unit employee who is a member of the Association, or who has applied for membership, may sign and deliver to the Exclusive Representative an assignment authorizing deduction of unified membership dues, initiation fees and general assessments in the Exclusive Representative. Pursuant to such authorization and as confirmed in a written notification from the Exclusive Representative, the District shall deduct one-tenth of such dues from the regular salary warrant of the bargaining unit employee each month for ten months. Deductions for bargaining unit employees who sign such authorization after the commencement of the school year shall be appropriately prorated to complete payments by the end of the school year.

2. Withdrawal from the Exclusive Representative will be in accordance with the Exclusive Representative's bylaws and requirements. A bargaining unit employee shall direct any inquiries regarding withdrawal from membership to the Exclusive Representative. The Exclusive Representative is responsible for notifying the District in writing of a withdrawal of dues deduction by any bargaining unit employee.

3. Exclusive Representative agrees to furnish any information needed by the District to fulfill its contractual obligations under the provisions of this Article.

B. <u>Hold Harmless and Indemnification.</u> The Association shall indemnify and hold harmless and shall defend the District, its officers, agents, employees, representatives and members of its governing board, from and against claims, demands, losses, judgments, liabilities, causes of action and expenses, including attorney fees and costs, of any kind or nature they may sustain or incur or which may be imposed upon them arising out of any legal challenge, court action, and/or action before the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB) or other administrative agency challenging the legality, implementation, or constitutionality of the Association dues provisions of this Article or the underlying statutes.

1. The District shall notify the Association in a timely manner of any court, PERB, or other administrative action or proceeding that is filed against the District arising out of this Article.

2. The Association shall have the sole right to decide and determine whether any action or proceeding covered by the terms of paragraph B shall be compromised, resisted, defended, tried, or appealed.

3. The Association agrees to pay to the District all reasonable legal and/or representation fees and costs incurred by the District, its officers, agents, employees, representatives, and members of its Governing Board, in defending against any court action or action before PERB or other administrative agency challenging the

implementation, legality, or constitutionality of the Association dues or agency fee provisions of this Article, or the underlying statutes.

C. The District will provide required AB 119 (Government Code §3558) information in its possession to the Exclusive Representative. The information will be provided for new hires within 30 days of employment. In addition, the District will provide AB 119 information monthly for all bargaining unit employees.

D. The Exclusive Representative will be provided an opportunity to meet with bargaining unit employees for at least 60 minutes at the new hire orientation at the beginning of the school year. The District will determine the time for the Exclusive Representative's presentation. The District will not be present during the Exclusive Representative's presentation.

Monthly P-BVUSD - P-BVTA Consultations

E. The Association President and/or Association designees shall meet monthly during the school year (August – May at a mutually agreed day and time) with the Superintendent in order to consult in developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP as provided in the LCAP Template, and to provide on-going consultation for items set forth in Government Code §3543.2(a) or any other items of mutual interest. Consultation does not include the negotiation of a change, modification, deletion, or addition to the current collective bargaining agreement.

Personnel Policy Changes

F. With respect to personnel policies of the District directly related to bargaining unit employees covered by this Agreement, the District agrees that any changes, modifications, deletions, or additions shall not be effected without first notifying and allowing the Association to request that such matters be reviewed on a "meet-and-confer" basis.

1. Matters of personnel policy changes, modifications, deletions, or additions shall be reflected on the Board of Trustees' meeting agenda, and a copy of such agenda will be provided to the Association by District email at least 72 hours prior to a regular Board of Trustees meeting. The emailing of such agendas shall be notice of any proposed personnel policy action by the District. Personnel policy changes shall not conflict with the existing language of the collective bargaining agreement unless mandated by new law or regulation.

2. Within five (5) days of mailing, the Association may, at its option, request in writing that the proposed actions be reviewed in a "meet-and-confer" session. For purposes of this paragraph, "meet and confer" is defined as a meeting between a representative or representatives of the District and a representative or representatives of the Association. The proposal shall be explained by the District and the Association shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to express the views of the Association related

to such proposal. Any written statement which the Association may submit to the District reflecting the position of the Association regarding the policy proposal shall be transmitted by the Superintendent to each member of the Board of Trustees. The "meet-and-confer" process shall include only the procedures in this subparagraph.

Collective Bargaining Agreement

G. After the execution of this Agreement, the District shall post a **finalized** copy of the Agreement on its website **within sixty (60) days**. The District will provide a printed copy of the Agreement to any requesting bargaining unit employee. Bargaining unit employees may request a printed copy of the Agreement by emailing Human Resources. A link to the agreement will also be distributed to all bargaining unit employees via District email.

ARTICLE IV HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT

Work Year

A. Effective July 1, 2024, the regular work year for bargaining unit members, is as follows:

1. The work year for General Education Teachers, as defined in Appendix C, is 183 days. General Education Teachers in their first year of service to the District (new hire) will work an additional three (3) days, compensated at their daily rate, for training, orientation and/or professional development purposes prior to the start of their contract year.

2. To allow for annual Special Services Division meetings (which may include professional development), individual caseload preparation, and school site team meetings, the work year for Special Education Teachers, as defined in Appendix C, Speech Pathologists and Speech Specialists is 184 days. Special Education Teachers, Speech Pathologists, and Speech Specialists in their first year of service to the District (new hire) will work an additional three (3) days, compensated at their daily rate, for training, orientation and/or professional development purposes prior to the start of their contract year.

- 3. The work year for School Nurses is 194 days.
- 4. The work year for Intervention Counselors is 196 days.
- 5. The work year for Academic Coaches is 186 days. With the exception of induction, the extra three (3) contracted days will be used for site-based training and/or site specific responsibilities at the discretion of the site- administrator.

6. The work year for School Psychologists is 204 days.

- 7. Bargaining unit employees shall be provided a work calendar for the school year following the District's adoption of the Master Calendar. Unless modified by the State, the Master Calendar shall be based on 180 days of instruction.
- 8. <u>The The first contracted day for general education classroom</u> teachers and the second contracted day for special education teachers day preceding the first day of school shall only be used as a preparation day for bargaining unit employees, except when necessary to prepare for students' individualized needs. No professional learning, site activities, or meetings will be permitted on this day.
- 9. The District and Association shall consult on the school calendar prior to November 1 of the preceding school year.
- 10. The last contracted day of the school year shall be a full workday, and will prioritize closing out the bargaining unit employees' responsibilities.

Work Days

B. Bargaining unit employees shall be on duty on regular work days as follows:

1. Unless otherwise provided for below, the workday for bargaining unit employees will be seven (7) hours and 30 minutes.

- a. Bargaining unit employees' duties are as assigned by the respective site or department administrator.
- b. The District shall assign site placements and work schedules for Music Teachers on an annual basis. Adequate travel time shall be provided within the work schedules.

2. The length of the full-time workday for Intervention Counselors, School Nurses, Speech Pathologists, and Speech Specialists shall be eight (8) hours. The length of the full-time workday for School Psychologists shall be eight and one-half (8.5) hours, including a one-half (1/2) hour duty free lunch.

3. All bargaining unit employees shall be provided with a duty-free, uninterrupted lunch period of at least 30 minutes.

C. Absent unusual circumstances at the discretion of the site principal, no more than an average of two (2) mandated staff meetings will be required by the site principal during a school month. Bargaining unit employees may be required to remain an additional 30 minutes beyond the normal work day for the purpose of attending a regularly scheduled monthly staff meeting.

1. The site administrator shall provide the bargaining unit employees with one (1) week prior notice whenever this additional time requirement is implemented.

2. Bargaining unit employees will be paid the extra duty hourly rate for time spent attending a regularly scheduled monthly staff meeting that extends beyond the required 30 minutes.

3. There shall not be more than one (1) staff meeting held on a PLC Wednesday per month.

4. School Psychologists will be required to attend monthly mandatory School Psychologist meetings. These meetings will occur during the duty day. At the site administrator's discretion, with one week notice, School Psychologists will attend mandatory staff meetings.

D. A bargaining unit employee may leave the school site at the discretion of the administrator or designee to attend to matters of personal necessity or personal emergency under one of the following conditions:

1. Upon the final dismissal of the bargaining unit employee's students at the end of the instructional day; or,

2. Another Teacher volunteers to assume the responsibility for the bargaining unit employee's class during the instructional day for a specified period of time. The bargaining unit employee must notify the administrator prior to the use of this provision.

A request shall not be denied arbitrarily or capriciously.

E. Attendance may be required at not more than three (3) evening meetings and/or activities, such as Back-to-School Night, Open House/Family-Community Engagement Activity, school carnivals, concerts, etc. At the beginning of the school year, The site administrator shall provide at least forty-five (45) days' notice to bargaining unit members regarding evening meetings and/or activities which require attendance at their particular school. Music teachers may be required to attend more than in excess of three (3) District-approved events outside the contractual day and will be compensated at their individual hourly rate of pay for these events.

1. If a bargaining unit employee is asked by the administrator and agrees to attend more than the required evening meetings and/or activities, the District will compensate the bargaining unit employee at the extra duty hourly rate.

2. In any school year during which bargaining unit employees are subject to furloughs, attendance will be required for not more than two (2) evening meetings and/or activities.

F. Yard duty aides in lieu of Teachers will be assigned to supervise all recess yard duties which occur during the instructional day for Transitional Kindergarten through 6th Grade at each elementary site. Duties which occur before or after the instructional day will be assigned to Teachers on an equitable and rotating basis. Teachers will be compensated at the extra-duty rate for supervision duties extending beyond their contractual day.

G. The regular workday schedule shall be modified or reduced as follows:

1. Bargaining unit employees will be released one (1) hour early from the regular workday to accommodate for up to three (3) required evening events where students are dismissed early (Back-to- School Night, Open House/Family-Community Engagement Activity, school carnivals, concerts, etc.) where they and bargaining unit employees are required to work later for such activities. This time will be considered part of the bargaining unit employees' regular workday. Except for Back-to-School Night, if a the bargaining unit employee is required to work for more than one (1) hour, they will be compensated at the extra duty hourly rate beyond one (1) hour. Except for music related events, attendance by a bargaining unit employee cannot be mandatory if students are not released early.

2. The workday shall be reduced two (2) hours on the days prior to Autumn, Winter, and Spring recesses. For the 2023-2024 school year, the workday shall also be 2021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA 9 December 2023 reduced by two (2) hours on the last day of instruction.

3. Sufficient instructional time shall be banked during each school day to allow for one 90-minute block of time per week (currently on Wednesdays) at each school site, intended primarily for collaboration time (PLC). The 90-minute block will be utilized as follows:

• In any given month, only one (1) 90-minute block may be utilized for a staff meeting:

<u>and Up to five (5) another one (1)</u> 90-minute blocks may be <u>used utilized</u> for administrative led professional learning (professional development).
 <u>during the school year</u>, with no more than one (1) such block utilized in a given month; and
 The remaining 90-minute blocks will be used for collaboration time (PLC).

H. In grades TK-6th General Education and Special Day Class teachers shall have an individual daily period of planning and preparation time of no less than 20 consecutive minutes, **except in unusual circumstances including up to the first thirteen (13) instructional days, if necessary.** This paragraph shall be implemented at the beginning of the 2024-2025 academic year. Teachers in 7th and 8th grades will have the equivalent of one (1) preparation period per day.

I. All General Education and Special Day Class Teachers in 4th, 5th, and 6th grades will be provided a 40-minute planning and preparation period once per week beginning the first full instructional week of the year for planning and preparation based on assignment of a Music Teacher to be in charge of the General Education and Special Day Class Teacher's entire class. If the General Education or Special Day Class Teacher is absent and a substitute is not available, or due to a one-day holiday, the Music Teacher will attempt to make up for the missed class during the same week. If the class cannot be made-up in the same week, the General Education or Special Day Class Teacher will be compensated at the extra duty hourly rate of pay for the missed planning and preparation time.

J. If the District's efforts to obtain a substitute for Special Education Pre-K, Transitional Kindergarten through 6th Grade General Education and Special Day Class Teachers are unsuccessful, students will be distributed to the remaining Teachers. The affected Teachers will be compensated at a per diem rate based on Column VI, Step 10 of the applicable Certificated Teacher Annual Salary Schedule according to the percentage of students received.

K. <u>Compensation for Teaching in Lieu of a Preparation Period.</u> A Junior High Teacher who commits to teaching daily lieu of a preparation period will receive one-seventh (1/7) of their annual salary <u>as additional compensation</u>.

L. <u>Compensation for Substituting During a Preparation Period</u>. A Junior High Teacher who substitutes during a preparation period will receive one-seventh (1/7) of their daily rate of pay for each <u>period</u> taught.

M. A School Psychologist may be assigned to assist with an assessment or IEP meeting outside of their normally assigned campus. The affected School 2021-2024 P-By USD/P-By TA December 2023 Psychologist will be compensated at their hourly rate for hours worked outside of the contract day, as approved by the Special Services Director or designee, for School Psychologist duties missed while performing the assigned duties. The Special Services Director, or designee, and School Psychologist will schedule the approved make-up hours.

M. <u>Extended Absences Coverage.</u> When a School Psychologist, School Nurse, Speech-Language Pathologist, or Speech Specialist is absent for an extended period, the District will first attempt to assign a qualified substitute. If none are available, other bargaining unit members in these roles may be assigned to provide coverage, including IEP services and assessments.

Bargaining unit employees may agree to cover caseloads outside their own. If no bargaining unit employees are available, the site administrator or designee will assign coverage, rotating assignments among eligible employees as practicable. The District reserves the right to assign coverage to ensure compliance with IEP requirements, assessments, and student safety when no other options exist.

Employees covering absences outside regular work hours will be compensated at their hourly rate via timecard. Additionally, with supervisor approval, they may be compensated at their hourly rate for missed duties performed outside the contract day while covering for an absent colleague.

N. When no other classroom coverage options are available, an Academic Coach may be temporarily assigned to assist with the coverage of classrooms. The affected Academic Coach will be compensated at the extra duty hourly rate for hours worked outside of the contract day, as approved by the site administrator, for Academic Coach duties missed while providing coverage. The site administration and the affected Academic Coach will schedule the approved make up hours.

O. Participation on committees to consult on curriculum, book selection, etc. shall be on a voluntary basis.

P. Bargaining unit employees agreeing to pilot new curriculum will be provided with either release time or compensation at the extra duty hourly rate for extra hours worked outside of the contract day in collaboration with site and District administration. Bargaining unit employees will be presented with a pilot proposal which will include required training, planning, and implementation requirements at least 30 days in advance of the proposed pilot.

Overnight Environmental Camp

Q. Sixth Grade Teachers are expected to attend Camp KEEP or other environmental camps with their students, if at all possible, and to participate in the activities provided for the students. In the event that the regular 6th Grade Teacher is unable to attend, assignments for the duration of the camp may be swapped with another Teacher at the school site with the approval of the administration.

Job-Sharing Program

R. Job-Sharing is a plan whereby two (2) permanent bargaining unit employees share the duties and responsibilities for one (1) full-time teaching position. Salary compensation and health benefits contribution for each participant will be based on 50% of a full-time equivalent position ("FTE").

1. Both participants in a Job-Sharing plan shall attend the following District functions, with or without compensation regardless of what format is used in splitting up the yearly schedule:

- Orientation meetings held prior the start of student instruction
- First day of instruction
- Back-to-School Night
- <u>District WideAll</u> staff professional learning days (job-sharing teacher who is not scheduled to work during professional learning will be paid at the extra-duty rate)
- Open House/Family-Community Engagement Activity
- Last day of instruction
- Check-out day

2. Participants in the Job Sharing program shall be covered by, and subject to, all provisions of this Agreement, with the following exceptions and conditions:

- a. Two (2) Job-Sharing teams shall be the maximum allowed at any school site during a given year unless the administrator agrees to additional teams.
- b. Job-Sharing participants shall be reemployed as part-time unit members at 50% of a full-time equivalent position. This action shall not constitute a break in service. Their permanent status shall be based upon the hours of the part-time positions.
- c. The program shall be of one (1) year duration. There shall be an annual review and evaluation. The program will continue only by mutual agreement of all the parties. If a Job-Sharing assignment is disbanding, the teachers participating in the Job-Sharing Program must notify the District in writing by March 1 of the current school year indicating their intent to disband the Job-Sharing team for the following year. Upon termination of the Job-Sharing assignment by the District, the District will

notify the Job-Sharing teams of the dissolution before February 1. Participants shall be offered full-time employment based upon the needs of the District, level of seniority and vacancy availability.

d. Teachers new to the Job-Sharing program must make a proposal, to be submitted by March 1, subject to approval of the site administrator and District. Applications are subject to final approval of the Board of Trustees.
 If a Job-Sharing request is denied, the Teacher may request to have in writing the specific reasons for the denial within 10 days of the denial. The

writing the specific reasons for the denial within 10 days of the denial. The Teacher must make a written request within five (5) days of the denial.

- e. For the purposes of Job-Sharing, a full-time teaching position must be evenly split either by dividing the number of work days each week or alternating full work weeks. If a Job-Sharing request is approved, the participants must submit a District form calendar approved by the site administrator to Human Resources providing the days to be worked by each Job-Sharing participant for the following academic year.
- f. Participants may be required by the District to substitute for each other, not to exceed 20 days, at the regular rate of substitute pay.
- g. If one (1) of the participants in the Job-Sharing program resigns, goes on leave of absence, or returns to full-time employment, the position being shared shall be filled by the remaining participant if a suitable Job-Sharing partner, mutually agreeable to the District and the remaining participant, is unavailable.
- h. Participants may apply for full-time employment on a vacancy available basis during the annual District position posting process. In considering such applications and before granting full-time employment to Job-Sharing participants, the District will fill the vacancies with priority given to the following:
 - (1) Transfer requests of current full-time employees.
 - (2) Employees returning from leaves of absence.

i. One (1) year in the program shall qualify for one (1) step advancement on the salary schedule. Upon returning to full-time employment, placement on the salary schedule will be adjusted by the following method: Two (2) years of Job-Sharing equals one (1) year of step credit. One (1) year of job sharing is equal to one-half (.5) years of District seniority.

- j. Participants shall be entitled to a pro rata amount of leave benefits.
- k. Transfer or reassignment of participants shall be prescribed by Article IX with the following exception:

(1) When an involuntary transfer or reassignment is deemed necessary, the District seniority of the Job-Sharing position will be based on the average of the combined District seniority of both participants.

(2) In those instances where District seniority is the same for a full-time Teacher and the averaged seniority of the affected Job-Sharing team, preference shall be given to the full-time Teacher.

I. Job-Sharing teams may use the same seniority standards described in paragraph P.2.k. above, when applying for vacancies or reassignments during the vacancy/reassignment posting period.

ARTICLE V CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEE EVALUATION PROCEDURES

General Provisions

A. These provisions constitute the procedures to be utilized for the evaluation and assessment of certificated bargaining unit employees as set forth in California Education Code §44660, et seq.

1. The established standards of expected student achievement adopted by the Board at each grade level in each area of study shall be utilized in the Teacher evaluation procedure.

2. The evaluation of General Education Teachers and Special Education Teachers shall relate to the requirements of Education Code §44662(b) and the California Standards for the Teaching Profession. Evaluations of Academic Coaches, Intervention Counselors, School Nurses, Speech Pathologists, **and** Speech Specialists, **and School Psychologists** are based upon Education Code §44662(c) and relate to the fulfillment of the responsibilities of the position.

3. A formal written evaluation in accordance with this Article shall be made for probationary bargaining unit employees at least once each school year.

4. A formal written evaluation in accordance with this Article shall be made for permanent bargaining unit employees at least once every other school year. As authorized by Education Code §44664(a)(3), a permanent certificated bargaining unit member may be evaluated at least every five (5) years if all of the following criteria apply:

- Employed by the District for 10 years;
- Previous evaluation rated the bargaining unit employee as meeting standards; and,
- The evaluator and bargaining unit employee agree to the five (5) year cycle.

The bargaining unit employee or the evaluator may withdraw consent at any time. Notification of withdrawal shall be made in writing at least one (1) week prior to the first observation.

5. It is the responsibility of the administrator or the immediate supervisor to evaluate each bargaining unit employee in the school and to provide direction and guidance in addressing and remediating performance difficulties. Permanent bargaining unit employees who are to be evaluated on their regular evaluation cycle (two (2) year or five (5) year) shall be notified in the first month of the school year. A permanent bargaining unit employee who is to be evaluated off-cycle shall be given advance written notification at least one (1) week prior to the first observation.

- a. The formal written evaluation shall be provided to the bargaining unit employee not less than 30 days before the last school day scheduled on the school calendar.
- b. The formal written evaluation of an Intervention Counselor, School Nurse, Speech Pathologist, or Speech Specialist, or School Psychologists who is employed on a 12 month basis shall be provided to the bargaining unit employee no later than June 30 of the school year.

6. While a grievance may be filed alleging a violation of procedural steps of this Article, no grievance may be filed regarding the contents of a written evaluation.

Formal Observations of Teachers, Speech Pathologists, Speech Specialists, and School Nurses, and School Psychologists

B. Prior to the initial written evaluation for the school year, there shall be at least two (2) formal prescheduled observations for probationary Teachers, Speech Pathologists, Speech Specialists, **and**-School Nurses, **and School Psychologists**; and at least one (1) formal pre-scheduled observation for permanent Teachers, Speech Pathologists, Speech Specialists, and School Nurses.

1. The observation(s) will preferably cover the major portion of the class period or accumulated time equal to at least one (1) hour for non-classroom-based Teachers, Speech Pathologists, Speech Specialists, and School Nurses, and School Psychologists.

2. The evaluator shall inform/communicate to all Teachers, Speech Pathologists, Speech Specialists, and School Nurses. who are scheduled for evaluation during the current school year of the procedures and forms to be used for evaluation. Evaluators will schedule a one-on-one pre-observation conference with each Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, and School Nurse, and School Psychologists.

3. The evaluator will assign the academic area or service responsibility to be observed for each Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, **and** School Nurse, **and School Psychologists** at least five (5) days in advance of the observation.

a. The observation(s) for School Psychologists could include observation of an IEP/504 team meeting, case staffing or case review, and/or review of an assessment report(s) with the School Psychologist.

4. A conference shall be held as soon as practicable following each formal observation which shall normally be within five (5) work days.

5. If the observation indicates that the Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, **and** School Nurse, **and School Psychologists** is meeting the standards in all areas related to instruction, teaching methods, or service responsibility, the observation form will be marked as such. A copy will be given to the Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, **and** School Nurse, **and School Psychologists**. and a copy will be filed in the District personnel file.

6. If an observation indicates that a Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, and School Nurse, and School Psychologists, is not meeting the standards, the following procedures shall be implemented:

a. The formal observation form will not be completed. Instead, the evaluator shall document in a written narrative the specific area or areas where standards are not being met on the Performance Notification Form, Part I: Written Improvement Plan, which is attached to this Agreement as Appendix F.

b. The Written Improvement Plan, specifically addressing the identified area or areas will be developed and implemented by the Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, **and** School Nurse, **and School Psychologist**, and the evaluator followed by a four (4) week period of assistance for the Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, **and** School Nurse, **and School Psychologist**. Outside assistance will be provided when appropriate.

c. After the four (4) week period of assistance, the evaluator will meet with the Teacher, Speech Pathologist, Speech Specialist, **and** School Nurse, **and School Psychologist** to discuss the results, which will be set forth in Part 2: Results of Written Improvement Plan.

d. Following the four (4) week improvement plan, a second formal observation shall take place.

e. If satisfactory improvement has been made at the end of the four (4) week improvement plan as evidenced by the second formal observation, the evaluator will mark the area or areas as meets standards on the observation form. If improvement has not been made at the end of the four (4) week improvement plan as evidenced by the second formal observation, the evaluator may indicate the lack of improvement by marking "does not meet standards" in the affected areas on the observation form. In either case, this will become the official observation completed by the evaluator and will be documented on the Performance Notification Form, Part 2.

Formal Written Evaluation

C. In the formal written evaluation, the evaluator shall cite the bargaining unit employee's specific qualities, abilities, or deficiencies. Any statement concerning the bargaining unit member's competency from a person other than the evaluator shall be verified by the evaluator prior to inclusion in the written evaluation. Unsubstantiated information will not be used in the evaluation.

D. The bargaining unit employee and evaluator shall meet to review the evaluation which shall normally be within five (5) days after its completion. The bargaining unit employee's signature does not signify agreement/disagreement with the evaluation, it only indicates that the bargaining unit employee has reviewed the form and has received a copy. The review meeting for an Intervention Counselor, School Nurse, Speech Pathologist, **or School Psychologist** who is employed on a 12-2021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA 17 December 2023 month basis shall be held prior to July 30 of the year in which the evaluation takes place.

E. The bargaining unit employee may prepare and submit a written response or rebuttal to the evaluation. The formal written evaluation shall be placed in the bargaining unit employee's file, and any response or rebuttal shall become a permanent attachment to the evaluation form.

Remediation Process

F. In the event the formal written evaluation indicates that a bargaining unit employee is not meeting the standards at an acceptable level in any area of the evaluation, the evaluator shall describe the specific area or areas either in the evaluation itself or in a separate document.

1. Following the review process, the bargaining unit employee shall be to a remediation plan that will be jointly developed by the administrator or evaluator and the bargaining unit employee.

2. As a part of the remediation process, the evaluator may provide, or the bargaining unit employee may request, continued observations and conferences.

3. If, in the opinion of the evaluator, subsequent bargaining unit employee performance meets the standards in the area of identified deficiencies, a notification to that effect shall be attached to the evaluation.

Certificated Evaluation Committee

G. While the District retains the management right to create and implement evaluation forms, the District will convene an evaluation committee to review and provide input or feedback on the design and content when the District has created a new, or revised an existing, evaluation form for certificated bargaining unit classifications. Any recommendation from the committee will be provided, in writing, to the Superintendent or designee. The parties agree that the evaluation committee's role is not to address the evaluation procedure. The evaluation committee shall consist of equal representatives from the certificated bargaining unit and the District, and will be appointed by their respective parties. Participation in the committee will be voluntary, not subject to additional compensation, and prioritized by committee members.

ARTICLE VI GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Purpose: The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, resolution of disputes that arise out of the application of this Agreement. Every effort will be made by all parties to keep grievance matters confidential.

General Provisions

A. A "grievance" shall allege a violation of a specific provision(s) of this Agreement. The approved grievance forms are attached to this Agreement as Appendix E.

1. An action to challenge application(s) of Board policies, administrative directives, rules, or procedures over matters not contained in this Agreement are not grievances under the provisions of this Article and shall be undertaken pursuant to such separate administrative procedures as established by the Board of Trustees.

2. For all matters which have specified review procedures, such procedures shall be the sole method of review or challenge (e.g., Department of Fair Employment and Housing).

B. The grievant may elect to be represented by the Exclusive Representative and must inform the District in writing at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. An individual grievant may elect not to be represented by the Exclusive Representative and may present a grievance to the District and have the grievance adjusted or resolved without the intervention of the Exclusive Representative. The District shall not agree to a resolution of the grievance until the Exclusive Representative has received a copy of the grievance and the proposed resolution and has been given the opportunity to file a response.

1. The District shall not agree to an adjustment or resolution that is inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. The adjustment or resolution shall not establish a precedent regarding the subject matter of the grievance.

2. If the Exclusive Representative believes that the resolution is inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, the Exclusive Representative must file a grievance at Level Four within 15 days of acceptance of the proposed resolution by the individual grievant.

3. The grievant and a designated bargaining unit representative, if any, participating in the processing of the grievance, shall suffer no loss in pay if meetings or appointments are scheduled by mutual agreement with the District.

4. Witnesses who are called to testify in an arbitration hearing shall be on release time for that part of the school day for which they are absent for the purpose of testifying in the hearing.

C. Once a grievance has been initiated, all matters of dispute relating to it which occur during the processing of the grievance shall become a part of and be resolved in the grievance proceeding. Once a grievance has been resolved or a final decision rendered, a grievant shall not be entitled to initiate a new grievance on any matter or occurrence which could have been included in the first grievance.

D. Time limits may be extended or shortened only by mutual agreement of the grievant and the District. Failure of the grievant to adhere to the time limits of this Article shall constitute waiver of the grievance and acceptance of the District's action or decision at the appropriate level. Timelines shall not be enforced during Autumn, Winter or Spring recess periods.

E. No reprisals of any kind will be taken by the District against any grievant or participant in the grievance procedure by virtue of such participation. All written materials pertinent to a grievance except decisions resulting from final determinations or settlements shall be filed separately in a grievance file.

F. Until final disposition of the grievance takes place, the grievant shall conform to the original direction of the District.

G. If a grievance arises at an administrative level above the grievant's administrator, the initial filing, which shall comply with the provisions of Level One, shall be made at Level Two.

Informal Level

H. An informal conference between the grievant and the immediate supervisor shall be held to discuss the written grievance.

Level One

I. Within 20 days of the occurrence of the alleged violation of the Agreement, the grievant shall personally present the grievance in writing to the immediate supervisor. A copy of the grievance shall be provided by the grievant simultaneously to the Association's Grievance Chairperson.

1. Grievance forms not completely filled out or not containing the required information shall be rejected as improperly filed. Such rejection shall not extend the time limits of this Article without the mutual consent of the District and the grievant.

2. The grievant or representative may request a formal conference with the immediate supervisor.

3. Within 10 days of receipt of the grievance by the supervisor, or within 10 days of the conference, if requested, the supervisor shall communicate a response to the

grievant in writing. If the supervisor does not respond within the time limit, the grievance is denied and the grievant may appeal to Level Two.

<u>Level Two</u>

J. In the event the grievance is denied at Level One, a written appeal to the Superintendent or designated representative shall be filed within 10 days of the issuance of the Level One decision or the deadline within which such decision was to be made.

1. The appeal shall contain all materials utilized in the first level, including the decision rendered, if any, and a statement of the reason for the appeal.

2. The Superintendent or designated representative shall meet with the grievant and the representative, if the grievant so desires, within 10 days of the receipt of the appeal. A written response shall be provided to the grievant within 10 days of the conference.

3. If the Level Two response is not provided within the time limit, the grievance is denied and the grievant may appeal to Level Three.

Level Three

K. The grievant, on written notice to the District within 10 days of the Level Two decision, may request mediation through the California State Conciliation Service.

1. The mediator shall attempt to find a mutually acceptable resolution of the grievance.

2. The mediator shall not issue any public statement of fact or opinion on the issue.

3. The mediation or settlement positions of either party shall not be made public, nor shall they be introduced into any other grievance level.

Level Four - Arbitration

L. In the event the grievance is not resolved at Level Three, the Exclusive Representative may file a demand for arbitration under the provisions of the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The demand for arbitration must be filed within five (5) days of completion of the Level Three proceedings. If the grievant is satisfied with the result at Level Three, or any prior level, the Exclusive Representative is barred from instituting the arbitration procedure.

M. The arbitration shall be limited solely to the interpretation and application of this Agreement to the precise issue(s) submitted for arbitration. The arbitration shall not determine any other issue(s).

N. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to hear cases challenging any of the following:

- The termination of services or failure to re-employ a probationary bargaining unit employee.
- The placement of a bargaining unit employee on probationary status.
- The termination of services or failure to re-employ any bargaining unit employee in a position for which extra compensation is received.
- The content of the bargaining unit employee's evaluation.
- The District's promulgation of rules, policies, or procedures for the implementation of this Agreement.
- A decision, action, or inaction of the District if such is appealable to a state or federal regulatory body or court.

O. After a hearing on the merits of the grievance, the arbitrator shall render a written decision which sets forth findings of fact, reasoning, and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decision that requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which is in violation of the terms of this Agreement.

1. Where the District has made a judgment involving the exercise of discretion, the arbitrator shall review such decision solely to determine whether the decision has violated the Agreement and shall not substitute the arbitrator's judgment for that of the District.

2. The arbitrator shall not add to, subtract from, amend, modify, or alter any provisions or procedures contained in this Agreement.

3. The arbitrator shall not issue statements of opinion or conclusions not essential to the determination of the issue(s) submitted.

4. The arbitrator's award may include restitution, financial reimbursement, or other proper remedy except fines or penalties.

P. The decision of the arbitrator will be submitted to the District and the Exclusive Representative for implementation. The Arbitrator's decision is binding.

Q. The costs of the arbitration proceeding, including the per diem charges of the arbitrator, shall be borne equally by the parties. Each party shall be responsible for the costs of presenting its case.

ARTICLE VII LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Sick Leave

A. <u>Regular Sick Leave</u>. Each full-time bargaining unit employee shall be entitled to 10 days yearly sick leave (or prorated share based on FTE of a less than full-time bargaining unit employee). Sick leave may be accrued as provided by Education Code §44978. The provisions of Education Code §44979 shall apply to the transfer of accumulated sick leave.

B. <u>Pregnancy Leave.</u> Pursuant to Education Code §44965, bargaining unit employees shall be entitled to utilize sick leave for the period of time required to be absent by reason of pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition.

1. The period of leave, including the date upon which the leave shall begin and end, shall be determined by the bargaining unit employee and doctor's analysis and written verification of the bargaining unit employee's physical ability to render service to the District.

2. The date of the bargaining unit employee's return to service shall be based upon their doctor's analysis and written verification of their physical ability to render service to the District.

C. <u>Extended Sick Leave.</u> Pursuant to Education Code §44977, when a bargaining unit employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent from duty for an additional period of five (5) school months, the amount deducted from the bargaining unit employee's salary for any of the additional five (5) school months in which the absence occurs shall not exceed the sum that is actually paid a substitute employee or the amount that would have been paid to the substitute had one been employed.

1. If the school year ends before the five (5) school month period is exhausted, the balance of the five (5) school month period is carried over to the following school year.

2. As provided by Education Code §44978.1, when a bargaining unit employee exhausts their extended sick leave period, they are placed on a re-employment list for a period of 24 months if they are on probationary status, or for a period of 39 months if they are on permanent status.

3. A bargaining unit employee's return to work shall be as provided by Education Code §44978.1.

D. The District may require acceptable verification by a licensed physician or practitioner of the bargaining unit employee's need for absence and/or return to work.

December 2023

Family and Medical Leave Act/California Family Rights Act

E. Bargaining unit employees who qualify under the provisions of the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) may request a leave of absence in accordance with requirements established by law and regulations for up to 12 workweeks per school year. Health insurance benefit contributions are made as provided by applicable provisions of California or Federal law and regulations.

Personal Necessity Leave

F. Bargaining unit employees must submit for approval a request for Personal Necessity Leave at least two (2) days in advance of the needed leave in accordance with Education Code §44981. If approved, a bargaining unit employee may use up to 10 days of Regular Sick Leave for matters of personal necessity. Any leave taken by a bargaining unit employee in accordance with this paragraph shall not be for monetary gain to the bargaining unit employee. In addition, personal necessity leave will not be granted for: (1) extension of a holiday; (2) recreational activities; (3) matters that can be cared for outside the working day; or (4) concerted activities.

Personal Business Leave

G. Two (2) of the 10 days of sick leave may be used for personal business leave per year and is non-cumulative. Bargaining unit employees will not be required to give a reason for using the two (2) personal business leave days. Bargaining unit employees must provide five (5) workdays advance written notice of the intended use of a personal business leave day. In no case may a personal business leave day be taken to extend District School Calendar recesses or on the days of scheduled District Professional Development.

Bereavement Leave

H. Bargaining unit employees receive bereavement leave in accordance with Education Code §44985 as follows:

1. A leave of absence not to exceed five (5) workdays, or seven (7) workdays if travel of 250 miles or more one-way is required, on account of the death of any member of their immediate family (as defined in Appendix C).

2. There shall be no deductions made from the salary of such bargaining unit employee nor shall such leave be deducted from leave granted by other provisions of the Education Code or otherwise provided by the governing board of the District.

Compelling Personal Leave

I. Every bargaining unit employee shall be allowed up to five (5) days leave of absence annually for the conduct of personal business which is of a compelling personal

nature that cannot be carried out during off-duty time. In such cases, the amount deducted from the salary due to the bargaining unit employee shall be the sum actually paid to a substitute employee or would have been paid to the substitute if one had been employed. Any personal leave taken by a bargaining unit employee in accordance with this paragraph shall not be for monetary gain to the bargaining unit employee. At least two (2) days advance notice, in writing, to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources is required except that in those cases where an emergency precludes the bargaining unit employee from giving such two (2) day notice. The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources retains the authority to waive the advance notice requirement.

Unpaid Personal Leave

J. At the discretion of the Superintendent, or their designee, bargaining unit employees may be granted an unpaid personal leave not to exceed 10 school days duration with prior written notice of at least five (5) days. In the case that prior written notice is not possible, the Superintendent or designee shall be notified as soon as possible.

Jury Duty

K. Bargaining unit employees shall be entitled to leave without loss of pay when called for jury duty. This shall be accomplished by the bargaining unit employee turning in a Certification of Jury Service. The bargaining unit employee will sign over to the District any check received for services rendered while on jury duty.

1. The total time required for jury duty, reasonable travel time, and the remainder of the bargaining unit employee's workday shall not exceed the bargaining unit employee's regularly assigned workday. This provision does not obligate the District to pay a bargaining unit employee for more than the number of hours in the bargaining unit employee's regular workday.

2. The bargaining unit employee will return to work from jury duty if three (3) or more hours remain in the bargaining unit employee's regularly assigned workday, which includes up to one (1) hour of travel time, unless the supervisor informs the bargaining unit employee not to return to work.

Industrial Accident/Illness Leave

L. Bargaining unit employees receive industrial accident and illness benefits provided for in Education Code §44984. The maximum allowable leave under §44984 shall be 60 days. An industrial accident or illness as used in this Article means an accident or illness which is incurred by the bargaining unit employee during the course of employment.

Child-Bonding Leave

M. Child Bonding Leave for the reason of the birth of a child of the bargaining unit employee, or the placement of a child with the bargaining unit employee in connection with the adoption or foster care of the child by the bargaining unit employee, will be provided to eligible bargaining unit employees for a period of up to 12 workweeks in accordance with Government Code §12945.2.

Parental Leave

N. In accordance with Education Code §44977.5, Parental Leave for the reason of the birth of a child of the bargaining unit employee or the placement of a child with a bargaining unit employee in connection with the adoption or foster care of the child by the bargaining unit employee, will be provided to eligible bargaining unit employees for a period of up to 12 workweeks.

Unpaid Extended Leave

O. The District may, upon written application of any bargaining unit employee, grant a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed one (1) year at a time. In reviewing requests for leave of absence, the District shall take into consideration the reasons stated for the request as it relates to the following:

- Benefit to the District;
- Personal health factors of the bargaining unit employee;
- The elements, if any, related to the family demands of the bargaining unit employee such as, but not limited to, temporary relocation of bargaining unit employee's spouse or registered domestic partner because of employment reassignment;
- Any other characteristics of such request which the District in its discretion determines to be appropriate.

1. A leave provided for in this paragraph shall not be granted when the reason for such request relates to monetary gain to the bargaining unit employee. No more than two (2) consecutive leaves shall be granted to any bargaining unit employee.

2. In those instances where a leave is granted under this paragraph, every reasonable effort will be made by the Superintendent or designee to reinstate the bargaining unit employee to the same position held at the time the leave was granted. If such efforts are not successful, the Superintendent or designee shall reassign the returning bargaining unit employee to a different assignment in order to meet the educationally related needs of the District.

3. Bargaining unit employees who are on an unpaid leave must notify the District of their intention to return or not to return to paid status prior to March 15 during

the leave year. Failure to provide such notification means the bargaining unit employee has forfeited any employment rights for the succeeding school year.

Judicial/Subpoena Leave

P. Bargaining unit employees who are required to be absent from duty pursuant to a subpoena which requires the bargaining unit employee to be present at litigation proceedings involving District matters shall not suffer any loss of pay or be charged any accumulated leave for such absence. The bargaining unit employee shall request subpoena pay which shall be forwarded to the District.

Military Leave

Q. Bargaining unit employees may request military leave as provided by law and shall retain all rights and privileges granted by law arising out of the exercise of military leave.

Sabbatical Leave

R. Incentive for leadership and professional growth is imperative for the development of a high level educational program. In keeping with the District's commitment to excellence in education, a Sabbatical Leave will provide a vehicle for continued productivity and creativity. A one (1) year or part-year leave may be granted to a bargaining unit employee for the purpose of professional advancement, subject to the following conditions:

1. The granting of a Sabbatical Leave must not result in any financial gain to the bargaining unit employee above and beyond the normal District compensation granted for such leave.

2. The granting of a Sabbatical Leave is contingent upon acceptance of the applicant into an accredited college or university advanced degree program. Leaves for the purposes of travel will not be approved under the provisions of this paragraph.

3. To be eligible, a bargaining unit employee must have taught in the District for seven (7) complete school years.

4. The proposed program of advanced degree study must be approved in advance by the Superintendent or designee. Once an applicant has been approved for a Sabbatical Leave, continuance of the leave is contingent upon satisfactory progress on the part of the applicant in a course of study composed of at least nine (9) semester units per semester or equivalent quarter units. If the applicant does not maintain satisfactory progress; or should the applicant fail to complete the aforementioned academic workload, they may be required to reimburse the District for any and all salary payments and health/welfare benefits granted by the District during the term of the Sabbatical Leave.

5. The procedure for applying for a Sabbatical Leave and for determining the distribution of such leave shall be established by the Superintendent or designee.

- Applications for a leave must be filed between September 15 and January 15 for leaves granted beginning with the succeeding school year. Applicants are to receive written notification of acceptance or denial on or before March 1.
- b. The number of bargaining unit employees on Sabbatical Leave shall not exceed one percent (1%) (rounded to the nearest whole number) of the certificated bargaining unit. If the number of requests exceeds the limitation, priority shall be given on the basis of length of service in the District. In the event that bargaining unit employees with equal years of service in the District apply for leaves in the same year, a lottery procedure shall be used.
- c. When the number of requests for leaves is in excess of the numerical quota, an alternate or alternates will be selected from the applicants. An alternate or alternates is granted a leave if one (1) or more of the selected bargaining unit employees should withdraw.

6. The allowance granted to a bargaining unit employee on a Sabbatical Leave shall be based on 50 percent of the bargaining unit employee's contract salary for the school term during which the leave takes place. For periods less than one (1) year, the allowance shall be prorated.

7. A bargaining unit employee who is granted a Sabbatical Leave must pledge to return to work in the District for two (2) complete school years following completion of the leave. If the bargaining unit employee's service is discontinued for any reason other than their incapacity to teach or placement on unrequested Leave before expiration of the full two (2) year period, the bargaining unit employee shall pay back to the District the pro rata part of the Sabbatical Leave allowance.

8. Upon expiration of the leave, the bargaining unit employee shall have the privilege of returning to the position occupied prior to the leave, or reassign the returning bargaining unit employee to a different assignment in order to meet the educationally related needs of the District. The bargaining unit employee shall notify the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee in writing of the date of return.

9. All fringe benefits for which a premium is required shall remain in force while on a Sabbatical Leave. Bargaining unit employees on a Sabbatical Leave are eligible for benefits that become available during the leave.

10. Bargaining unit employees on a Sabbatical Leave shall receive remuneration relative to annual increment while on leave.

11. In all other respects, the granting of Sabbatical Leaves shall be in compliance with Education Code §§44966 through 44970.

Catastrophic Leave/Continuation of Pay Status

S. A catastrophic leave/continuation of pay benefit may be requested by a bargaining unit employee pursuant to Education Code §44043.5, inclusive. For the purpose of this paragraph, "catastrophic" is defined in Education Code §44043.5(a)(1). The benefit consists of the number of sick leave credits donated by other District employees and converted to pay for the affected bargaining unit employee ("recipient").

1. A bargaining unit employee who requests this benefit must fill out the District application form and submit it to Human Resources, including the required documentation. Application forms are available at Human Resources. A recipient must be off duty for a minimum of ten (10) consecutive workdays prior to receiving donations and must have exhausted all Regular (i.e., full-paid) Sick Leave.

2. Once a complete application is submitted, the District will solicit donations from other District employees. Donations of an employee's Regular Sick Leave credit shall be a minimum of one (1) day, with additional full days thereafter.

- a. Regular Sick Leave credits are applied on an hour for hour basis. A difference in the rate of pay of a donating bargaining unit employee and the recipient will not affect the amount of pay received.
- b. Any District employee who donates Regular Sick Leave credits is required to have a Regular Sick Leave balance of at least five (5) days following the donation. As provided by Education Code §44043.5(d)(3), the transfer of eligible leave credits is irrevocable.

3. At the written request of the recipient, donated credits shall be coordinated with differential pay during a period when the bargaining unit employee is on Extended Sick Leave under the provisions of Education Code §44977 in order to mitigate the impact of the deduction of the substitute's pay from the bargaining unit employee's regular pay.

- a. At the written request of the bargaining unit employee, donated credits may be coordinated with available FMLA and/or CFRA benefits in order to provide a continuation of income, or may provide an extension of contributions for the District's health insurance package, or both.
- b. Donations used to provide an extension of contributions for the bargaining unit employee's portion of health insurance premiums will be calculated based upon the recipient's hourly rate of pay divided into the health insurance premium to be paid.

4. Receipt of continuation pay while on Catastrophic Leave does not alter or extend the five (5) school month duration of Extended Sick Leave benefits pursuant to Education Code §44977, and subsequent placement on a re-employment list pursuant to Education Code §44978.1.

ARTICLE VIII SAFETY AND MISCELLANEOUS CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

Safe Working Conditions

A. Bargaining unit employees shall not be required to work in hazardous or unsafe conditions. Hazardous or unsafe conditions must be reported to the bargaining unit employee's supervisor in writing. The reporting bargaining unit employee shall be advised of any remedial response in writing.

Student Discipline

B. A written description of the rights and duties of bargaining unit employees with respect to student discipline, including the right to suspend students from a Teacher's classroom or to recommend a pupil for suspension from school as provided by Education Code §48900, et seq., shall be presented to each bargaining unit employee at the beginning of each school year.

Support and Assistance

C. The District shall give full support to a bargaining unit employee, including legal and other assistance, for any assault upon the bargaining unit employee while acting in the discharge of their duties. Where absence from duty arises out of such assault or injury, the bargaining unit employee shall be reimbursed for any such absence in accordance with the applicable provisions of Article VII, Leaves of Absence.

Personal Property Protection

D. The District shall insure a bargaining unit employee's personal property (automobiles and cash excepted) located on the school premises, subject to a District insurance deductible, for loss against theft, fire, riots, vandalism, and/or malicious mischief.

1. Only personal property of a bargaining unit employee that is directly related to their professional activities, registered as such with the administrator, and approved by the District prior to loss, shall be covered by this provision.

2. The bargaining unit employee is responsible for paying the District insurance deductible up to \$10,000.

Tuberculin Tests or Screenings

E. The District will provide, or pay for, tuberculin tests or screenings that are required as a condition of continuing employment.

Notifications to Teachers

F. When a school site administrator becomes aware that a student who is enrolled at the site has a history of making threats, violence, or a criminal record, the receiving Teacher or Teachers shall be notified of the student's history and acknowledge such notification in writing.

ARTICLE IX TRANSFERS/REASSIGNMENTS

General Provisions

A. In all cases, the District shall determine when a vacant position shall be filled.

1. Teachers may be selected to fill a vacancy on a temporary basis not to exceed 30 days, until the provisions of this Article have been met.

2. Teachers are allowed only one (1) voluntary transfer and/or reassignment in any given year. Any transfer or reassignment that is granted in a given school year is not effective until the first contract day of the following school year.

3. "GATE," "Opportunity Class," Dual Language Immersion, Music, and CTE Pre-Pathway teaching positions, "Academic Coaches," and "Intervention Counselors," and "Music" teaching positions will not be posted and selections will be made through the District's normal hiring process. Music Teachers will be assigned per Article IV, Hours of Employment, section B.1.b. Current District bargaining unit employees will be given first consideration in the selection process.

a. Written Response. Within 10 days of a written request, any bargaining unit employee referenced above in paragraph IX.A.3, who is not selected for a vacant position, shall receive a written statement of the reason or reasons they were not selected. The request must be made within 10 days of receiving the selection decision. The response shall be based upon the factors set forth in paragraph A.5.a-f of this Article.

4. When staffing for a new school is required, the Transfer Policy shall be used only as a guide. The Administration will endeavor to provide for a balanced staff in opening new schools. At no time will an existing school staff be reduced more than onehalf of its projected Teachers for the succeeding school year in order to staff a new school.

5. Except as noted above, any bargaining unit employee covered by this Agreement may apply for transfers or reassignments. All requests for transfer or reassignment will be considered, and any decision thereon shall be based on:

- a. The educational and program related needs of the District and school sites.
- b. The bargaining unit employee's credential, special authorizations (e.g., CLAD, Special Education, single subject) and any credential limitations.
- c. The bargaining unit employee's training and experience.
- d. The bargaining unit employee's employment history for success as indicated in evaluations of past performance.

e. State or federal court or agency mandates. 2021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA 33

- f. Mutual compatibility between the bargaining unit employee and site administrator or program manager.
- g. The availability of a qualified replacement for the bargaining unit employee requesting a transfer from a difficult to fill staff position.
- h. If more than one (1) bargaining unit employee seeks a transfer or reassignment to the same position and more than one (1) bargaining unit employee equally meets the criteria, then the bargaining unit employee with the greatest seniority shall be placed in the position.

Annual Reassignment Process

B. If the District decides to fill a vacant position, the position will be offered as a reassignment to the Teachers at the affected site first.

1. <u>Reassignment Process.</u> The administrator will inform bargaining unit employees at the site by a written and e-mail posting including an application deadline, which shall be at least two (2) work days after the posting. Bargaining unit employees who file a Voluntary Transfer and Reassignment Form (Appendix G-1) will be considered according to the factors set forth in paragraph A.5 of this Article. Subsequent vacancies created by application of this paragraph shall be posted and filled in the same manner until the end of the annual Reassignment process.

2. <u>Combination Class Provisions.</u> When a combination class is being formed, the Teachers in the affected grade levels will have first claim to the new opening. In those instances where a combination class is disbanded, the displaced Teacher will have seniority rights at both grade levels of the combination assignment. Furthermore, the affected Teacher will have first claim to any new position that arises in either of the two (2) grade levels before the position is offered as a reassignment. Prior to the reassignment process, combination Teachers may remain in a combination class or opt out and have District seniority rights at both grade levels of the combination assignment.

Annual Transfer Posting Process

C. Once the reassignment process has been completed at the site, any resulting vacancies will become available for posting as a transfer opportunity to the District at large. The District shall post vacancy notices in the following manner:

1. Except as noted above, a list of all known vacancies, in unit member positions shall be posted on-line at the District's website by April 1 and updated at least every two (2) weeks thereafter until the end of the school year. No vacancies will be posted until bargaining unit employees who have provided a timely notification of return from a leave of absence or who were involuntarily transferred for the current school year have been assigned a position. No transfer shall be made until after the respective closing date(s).

2. The notice shall include the position description and location, grade level, subject matter assignment, or program and the factors set forth in paragraph A.5 that will be considered in the decision (including any desired additional duties).

Voluntary Transfer/Reassignment

Only permanent, bargaining unit employees and Job-Sharing teams, including those D. with special authorizations, may request a transfer or reassignment during the annual posting period to take effect at the beginning of the next school year. Transfer requests shall be made on the Certificated Transfer or Reassignment Form and filed with Human Resources: reassignment requests shall be made on the Form and filed with the school site administrator.

1. With the exception of the successful applicant, the names of the remaining applicants will be kept confidential.

2. Summer Transfer Process. Names of bargaining unit employees desiring a transfer/reassignment after the last day of school will be placed on a confidential Request for Transfer List by submitting the Summer Certificated Transfer or Reassignment Form (Appendix G-2) to Human Resources via email or delivery of a hard copy.

- The Form will be made available on the District's website (under the Human a. Resources tab) within 10 days of the end of the school year.
- b. The bargaining unit employee must return the Form to Human Resources on or before the last day of the school year in order to be considered for any reassignment and/or transfer through June 15.
- A final list of known vacancies not previously posted in the District annual C. Transfer/Reassignment process will be posted on the District website following the close of the annual Transfer/Reassignment window. The Association President will be provided via email a list of all newly hired General Education Teachers and Special Education Teachers, including those that are classified as "Late Hires" due to receiving a conditional offer of employment, following June 15th. The list of new hires will be provided by July 31st. A unit member position filled with a "Late Hire" will be included on the list of known vacancies during the next annual reassignment and/or transfer process.

3. Upon written request, the bargaining unit employee shall receive a written statement of the reason or reasons a request was denied. The request must be made within 10 days of the denial. The response shall be based upon the factors set forth in paragraph A.5 of this Article and shall be provided to the bargaining unit employee within 10 days of receipt.

By May 1 of each year, the District will survey School Psychologists to inform 4. them of known vacancies and to obtain their feedback regarding their current assignment and interest in a potential transfer.

Involuntary Transfer/Reassignment

E. Bargaining unit employees may be transferred or reassigned to a position they did not request, but not as a reprisal for activity protected by the Act. No vacancy shall be filled by means of an involuntary transfer or reassignment if there is a qualified volunteer from within the District to fill the vacancy. Reasons for transfer may include:

1. Placement of bargaining unit employees returning from leaves and/or restricted funding programs.

2. Instructional program requirements which may include another school or District department having greater need for a bargaining unit employee's specialized services than does the current school or department. Management will seek concurrence for the transfer or reassignment.

3. Performance renewal - a Teacher may be transferred or reassigned no more than once every two (2) years in order to provide a reasonable opportunity for improvement of performance. Transfers or reassignments for this reason shall be preceded by evaluations, conferences, and assistance in compliance with appropriate provisions of Article V.

4. Fluctuations in pupil enrollment - the District will determine what staff surplus, if any exists. There shall be an opportunity for bargaining unit employees in a surplus area voluntarily to transfer or be reassigned to any opening for which they are qualified.

5. Elimination or reduction of classes in special areas or programs.

6. Incompatibility with staff or school site administrator. In such situations, no bargaining unit employee shall be arbitrarily transferred or reassigned.

7. When an involuntary transfer or reassignment is deemed necessary to fill a vacancy due to conditions noted above, any decision shall be based on the educationally related needs of the District. Other factors which shall be considered are the following:

a. The factors listed in paragraph A.5 of this Article.

- b. Volunteers from the surplus area, if qualified.
- c. Unique instructional program requirements.
- d. Interns and all provisional credential holders at the affected site will be involuntarily transferred before a preliminary or clear credential holder at the same site would be involuntarily transferred.

8.If more than one (1) qualified bargaining unit employee is involved in the
situation, then the bargaining unit employee with the most seniority shall have the option of
362021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA36December 2023

taking a voluntary transfer or replacing the least senior bargaining unit employee at that school site. The provisions of this paragraph are effective providing that the bargaining unit employee with the most seniority meets the criteria set forth in paragraph E.1-7 of this Article.

9. <u>Written Response.</u> Upon written request, bargaining unit employees shall receive a written statement of the reason or reasons they are to be transferred or reassigned involuntarily. The request must be made within 10 days of the impending move. The response shall be based upon the factors set forth in paragraph E.1-7 of this Article and shall be provided to the bargaining unit employee within 10 days of receipt.

F. If a position from which a bargaining unit employee was involuntarily transferred or reassigned by application of paragraph E.4 is reinstated prior to the beginning of the third week of instruction for the current school year, the affected bargaining unit employee will be offered the reinstated position.

Notification, Preparation and Orientation

G. Bargaining unit employees who are transferred or reassigned after the first day of each school year shall be notified at least five (5) days in advance of the effective date of the transfer or reassignment.

H. General Education Teachers who are transferred or reassigned after the first day of each school year shall be allowed at least three (3) days for purposes of preparation and orientation to the new position and coverage will be provided for the three (3) days, unless the General Education Teacher and administration agree that the release time is not necessary.

I. Speech Pathologists, Speech Specialists, **or** Special Education Teachers, **or School Psychologists** who are transferred or reassigned after the first day of each school year shall be given up to five (5) work days of preparation time to close out caseload paperwork, and other related caseload management, before starting the new position or assignment. Every attempt will be made for Speech Pathologists **and School Psychologists** to not be transferred more than once per year.

Classroom Relocation

J. In the event that a Teacher is required to relocate to another classroom after the beginning of the school year, the Teacher will be entitled to two (2) days of release time for that purpose. Within five (5) days of notification of relocation, the Teacher shall request that two (2) days of release time be scheduled.

ARTICLE X

CLASS SIZE

A. <u>Class Size Article—Two-Year Pilot Program</u>

The following Class Size Article constitutes a two-year pilot program, effective from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2026. This pilot program is not precedent setting and will automatically terminate on June 30, 2026.

Negotiation for the 2026-2027 School Year

Either party may demand to negotiate the Class Size Article to be effective beginning the 2026-2027 school year, and such demand will not count against either party's discretionary reopeners for negotiations.

Reversion to Existing Contract Language

If the pilot program terminates, the Class Size Article shall revert to the existing contract language that was in place before the pilot program's implementation.

B. <u>Maximum Class Size Enrollment:</u> It is the District's intent to maintain a ratio of students to Teachers that is supported by State funding or mandated by regulations or statutes.

1. The following class sizes shall be established at each school site based on the average class sizes for the following grade levels:

- Kindergarten: An average class size of 26 students, with no more than 28 students in any one class.
- Grade 1: An average class size of 26 students, with no more than 28 students in any one class.
- Grade 2: An average class size of 28 students, with no more than 30 students in any one class.
- Grade 3: An average class size of 29 students, with no more than 31 students in any one class.
- Grade 4: An average class size of 30 students, with no more than 32 students in any one class.
- Grade 5: An average class size of 30 students in each class, with no more than 32 students in any one class.

- Grade 6: An average class size of 30 students, with no more than 32 students in any one class.
- Combination Classes: The maximum class size in a combination class will be based on the maximum class size of the lower grade.

When a new student enrolls, their class placement will be based on the average class size for the student's grade level at the time of enrollment.

Dual Language Immersion (DLI) Class Size Enrollment

1. DLI class sizes shall not exceed the applicable class size maximums. (See B.1)

2. DLI classrooms shall not be included in the calculation of general education grade level averages.

Special Education Class Size Targets:

- a. Mild to /Moderate Support Needs (MMSN) Primary Special Day Class: 16 students
- **b.** Mild<u>to</u>/Moderate Support Needs (MMSN) Intermediate Special Day Class: 18

students

c. Moderate/Severe Extensive Support Needs (ESN) Primary Special Day Class: 13

students

d. Moderate/Severe-Extensive Support Needs (ESN) Intermediate Special Day

Class: 14 students

e. Moderate/Severe Extensive Support Needs (ESN) Junior High Special Day

Class: 16 students

- f. Bridge Special Day Class: 12 students
- **g.** Behavior Intervention Class (BIC): 12 students
- h. Preschool Special Day Class: 13 Students
- i. Pre-School Transition Class: 20 students
- j. ACCSS: 12 students
- k. Intensive Intervention Center (IIC): 28 students

If a Special Day Class goes over the target class size, the program administrator will inform the employee of the impacted class of the plan to address the class size. Plan may include, but is not limited to: placement of additional instructional support in the classroom (Para Educator/Paraprofessional); financial compensation, or any other alternative determined appropriate for staff and student safety and the appropriate delivery of instruction. If it is determined by the program administrator that financial compensation is the most appropriate plan, the teacher will be compensated for each additional student. Compensation will be at a per student rate based on Column VI, Step 10 of the Certificated Special Education Teacher Annual Salary Schedule as included as Appendix A-2.2.

The Special Education class size targets set forth in the Article may be exceeded when a student otherwise would be denied service if not appropriately placed.

2. Students in Special Day Class ("SDC") who mainstream for 120 minutes or more of daily core instruction will be included for determining maximum class size enrollment in general education classes, described above in paragraph A.1. A classroom is considered at the maximum class size when the total number of students in a classroom, including the SDC mainstreaming students, reaches the class size limit as identified above in paragraph B.

- Following the leveling period, if a grade level is full and an SDC student requires to be mainstreamed for 120 minutes or more of daily core instruction, the assigned teacher will be compensated for that additional student. Compensation will be at a per student rate based on Column VI, Step 10 of the Certificated General Education Teacher Annual Salary Schedule as included as Appendix A-1.2. Teachers in a "Job Share" shall evenly split the additional compensation. (Note: Will include example of what is per student December 2023 2021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA daily rate once compensation finalized.)
- If a grade level is at the maximum class size, including SDC mainstreaming students, and a General Education student enrolls, the General Education student will be subject to overflow.

Nothing in this Article will prevent a student from receiving a required service in a student's Individualized Education Plan ("IEP"), including participation in general education setting. SDC students will not be required to overflow to another school site if a grade level is full.

3. Transitional Kindergarten ("TK"): Assembly Bill No. 22 mandates a maximum student- adult ratio of 12:1 and a maximum classroom enrollment of 24 students. The District will comply with any future legislation related to TK student-adult ratio and maximum class size enrollments.

4. Special Education Special Day Classes: The District will make every attempt to span no more than two (2) to three (3) grade levels.

5. The District is committed to maintaining an average caseload of no more than 55 students with active IEPs for Speech-Language Pathologists and Speech Specialists providing services to students in grades TK-8 and a maximum case load of no

more than 40 students with active IEPs for Speech-Language Pathologists and Speech Specialists providing services exclusively to preschool students. In the event that the Speech-Language Pathologist's or Speech Specialist's caseload exceeds 65 students with active IEPs for those providing services to students in TK-8, or more than 40 students with active IEPs for those serving students in preschool, the bargaining unit member will be allowed to timecard for a maximum of three (3) hours per assessment report and two (2) hours per IEP documents written for the additional student(s) over 65 or 40, as applicable, for report/IEP writing that is completed outside of their normal work hours.

6. Special education students will be considered in the District's student enrollment and class size projections.

7. The maximum number of students in a <u>grades 4</u>TK-6 music class shall not exceed the grade level cap applicable to the <u>of</u> the class in attendance. Performance ensembles, including Band, Chorus, and Orchestra are exempt <u>excluded</u> from this provision and not subject to a grade level cap. SDC students who are not mainstreamed for at least 120 minutes of daily core instruction are also exempt from the grade level cap. Paraeducators may attend with SDC students if deemed appropriate by the IEP.

8. The District will aim for a target class size of <u>33</u> students in General Education 7th and 8th grade classes, excluding performance ensembles and PE classes. In the event an individual class exceeds the above target class size, the principal shall meet with the bargaining unit employee involved and shall prepare a plan of options to address the class size, which may include, but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Placement of additional instructional support;
- 2. Re-distribution of students;
- 3. Increase of instructional materials and supplies; or
- 4. Any other alternative determined appropriate for staff or student safety and the appropriate delivery of instruction.

9. The District will aim for a target class size of 30 students in Co-Taught 7th and 8th grade classes, excluding performance ensembles and PE classes. In the event an individual class exceeds the above target class size, the principal shall meet with the bargaining unit employee involved and shall prepare a plan of options to address the class size, which may include, but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Placement of additional instructional support;
- 2. Re-distribution of students;
- 3. Increase of instructional materials and supplies; or
- 4. Any other alternative determined appropriate for staff or student safety and the appropriate delivery of instruction.

7<u>10</u>. The Superintendent or designee will provide an overview of the projections and leveling to the Association in the monthly P-BVUSD/P-BVTA consultation meetings.

BC. <u>Leveling</u>: With the exception of DLI classrooms, aAt each school site, within the first twenty (20) school days, the administrator shall attempt to establish an equitable distribution of students based upon each grade level or subject area. Any material deviation shall be subject to consultation between the administrator and Teachers of the affected grade level or subject area.

Within the first twenty (20) school days, if an elementary school site's reported grade level average enrollment exceeds the school site grade level averages set forth above in paragraph A.1., student enrollees may be subject to the District's "leveling process." For the purposes of this provision, school site grade level averages include only General Education classes and excludes Physical Education and Music Instruction.

In the event the leveling of students has an impact on multiple school sites throughout the District, District Administration will communicate the impact of leveling to site administration, Teachers, students, and their families. The following actions may be taken as a result:

1. Students may be subject to being assigned to another campus and assigned to a new Teacher based on class size and facility capacity.

2. With the exception of DLI teachers, **T**teachers of TK through 6th grade classes may be displaced from their current teaching assignment and required to be reassigned to a different teaching assignment at their current campus or transferred to a new teaching assignment at another school site. Classes, including combination classes, may be dissolved, stay in place and/or additional combination classes may be formed.

3. To maintain appropriate and equitable caseloads across the District, if a School Psychologist is concerned that their caseload is excessive, they will communicate their concern, in writing, to both their site administrator and District supervisor to initiate a discussion about potential solutions.

ARTICLE XI HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

Health Insurance Package

A. The District's maximum contribution for health and welfare benefits is \$19,793.00 annually (\$1,649.45 monthly). The District will offer to full-time bargaining unit employees and eligible dependents (as defined by the respective provider), the health and welfare benefit plans as listed in paragraphs A.1-A.4, of this Article. Any cost of the health insurance benefits selected by the bargaining unit employee that exceeds the District's contribution will be paid by the bargaining unit employee through pre-tax contributions to the SISC Flex Plan (IRS Code Section 125) monthly payroll deduction. The parties to this Agreement recognize that health and welfare benefits are a part of the total compensation package.

Beginning with the 2025-2026 plan year, if the annual premium for the least expensive medical insurance plan (currently PPO 80-E Plan) exceeds the District's maximum contribution (\$19,793.00), the District commits to meet with PBVTA, within one (1) month of receipt of plan renewal rates.

- 1. <u>Medical Insurance</u>
 - a. Anthem-Blue Cross (PPO 80-C, \$20; Rx \$7/\$25) administered by SISC III.
 - b. Anthem-Blue Cross (PPO 80-E, \$20; Rx \$9/\$35) administered by SISC III.
 - c. Anthem-Blue Cross (PPO 90-C; \$20; Rx \$7/25) administered by SISC III.

2. <u>Dental Insurance:</u> Delta Dental of California (DD1500; C50/1000), administered by SISC III. The plan includes a \$1,500.00 annual limit for diagnostic/restorative dental work per bargaining unit employee and eligible dependents and a \$1,000.00 lifetime orthodontia limit for dependent children only.

3. <u>Vision Insurance:</u> Vision Service Plan. (Signature C \$10) administered by SISC III.

4. <u>Life Insurance:</u> (G000ABIH-18B) administered by SISC III. A term life insurance policy covering the bargaining unit employee only in the amount of \$50,000.

B. Bargaining unit employees must work at least a half-time schedule in order to qualify for health and welfare benefits. Bargaining unit employees who work one-half or more of a regular assignment shall have their District paid health and welfare premiums prorated, if they elect to pay their portion of the premiums.

Benefits Upon Retirement

C. The District will provide medical/hospitalization and dental care insurance coverage for bargaining unit employees who retire from District service directly into CaISTRS or CaIPERS. Coverage includes eligible dependents. Bargaining unit employees who retire under this provision are eligible to receive the benefit to age 65.

1. In order to be eligible, a bargaining unit employee must have 20 or more years of service to the District and retire at or after age 55. A bargaining unit employee who has between five (5) and 20 years of service to the District and is age 59 or older at the date of retirement is also eligible.

2. The bargaining unit employee is required to contribute an amount (on a schedule set by the District) that equals the difference between the SISC published rate for the medical/hospitalization and dental insurances in the school year immediately preceding retirement and the published rate for same coverages for each year of the retiree's eligibility thereafter.

ARTICLE XII COMPENSATION

Certificated Salary Schedules

A. The applicable salary schedules shall be attached to this Agreement as appendices. For the 2024-2025 school year, the 2024-2025 Certificated Salary Schedules except for Speech Language Pathologists, will reflect a seven percent (7%) increase, retroactive to July 1, 2023. For the 2023-2024 school year, the 2022-2023 Speech Language Pathologists Salary Schedule will reflect a ten percent (10%) increase, retroactive to July 1, 2023. This retroactive increase applies to all bargaining unit employees in active status on December 31, 2023. Retroactive compensation will apply to base salary (excluding extra duty pay) only. Additionally, bargaining unit members in active status on December 31, 2023-2024 base salary.

A. For the 2024-2025 school year, the 2024-2025 Certificated Salary Schedules will reflect a one percent (1%) increase on base salary only. Additionally, bargaining unit members in active status on the date the agreement is ratified and approved by both parties [date of Board approval], will receive a one-time, off-schedule payment in an amount equivalent to five hundred dollars (\$500). Part-time bargaining unit employees will receive a prorated stipend based on their FTE.

B. A bargaining unit employee new to the District who has prior experience in their classification in an accredited educational institution, or other verifiable relevant experience for Speech Language Pathologists, Speech Specialists, and School Nurses, will receive credit for each year of prior service. The bargaining unit employee will be placed on the appropriate step, and appropriate column, on the appropriate Salary Schedule based on education and years of service, including years credited to the bargaining unit employee for out-of-district service.

Advanced Degree and Certificate Compensation

C. All bargaining unit employees, except Speech Language Pathologists, who have earned but are not required to hold a Master's Degree will receive additional compensation of \$1,500 annually, to be paid in equal payments over the course of the work year. The Master's Degree must be in a field that contributes to the assignment. Approval will be made on a case by case basis.

Speech Pathologists who have earned a Certificate of Clinical Competence will receive additional compensation of \$1,500 annually, to be paid in equal payments over the course of the work year.

All bargaining unit members who have earned a Doctorate Degree will receive additional compensation of \$2,500 annually, to be paid in equal payments over the course of the work year. The Doctorate Degree must be in an educationally related field that directly

2021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA

contributes to the assignment. Approval will be made on a case by case basis.

Career Longevity Pay (Anniversary Increment)

D. All Career Longevity Pay will be paid annually in equal payments over the course of the work year. The amounts below are not cumulative but reflect the total annual amount to be paid to School Nurses and Speech Pathologists, and School Psychologists for Career Longevity pay for District Service, as follows:

School Nurses:

- 1. **\$1,500** annually beginning with the 11th year of service to the District;
- 2. **\$2,000** annually beginning with the 16th year of service to the District;
- 3. **\$2,500** annually beginning with the 21st year of service to the District.

Speech and Language Pathologists:

- 1. \$3,000 annually beginning with the 11th year of service to the District;
- 2. \$6,000 annually beginning with the 16th year of service to the District;
- 3. \$9,000 annually beginning with the 21st year of service to the District.

School Psychologists:

- \$1,500 annually beginning with the 16th year of service to the District;
 \$3,500 annually beginning with the 21st year of service to the District.
- Dual Language Immersion Teachers: Annual Stipend in the amount of \$1500.

A unit member who is required to participate in IEP meetings that extend beyond <u>their</u> <u>contracted</u> the 7.5 hour workday shall be compensated at the extra duty hourly rate.

Extra Duty

E. Except for Speech Language Pathologists, Speech Specialists, **and** School Nurses, **and School Psychologists**, the Extra Duty (as defined in Appendix C) hourly rate for sitebased assignments will be as set forth in Appendix B. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, extra duty pay will be paid at the extra duty hourly rate via timecard, as described in Appendix B. Speech Language Pathologists, Speech Specialists, **and** School Nurses, **and School Psychologists** will receive their individual hourly rate for eligible extra duty work.

Salary Schedule Advancement

F. Salary column advancement on the Certificated General Education Teacher, Certificated Special Education Teacher, and Academic Coach Salary Schedules, beginning <u>effective July 1, 2025</u> on January 1, 2024, is subject to the following provisions:

1.Approved uUniversities, colleges, and courses including the Universities2021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA46December 2023

approved those authorized for induction units, are <u>listed</u>identified in on the District's <u>List of</u> <u>Universities</u>, <u>Colleges</u>, <u>and Courses</u> <u>List of Approved Authorizations and Programs</u> (accessible located on the District's Human Resources webpage).

<u>Courses and programs offered by c</u>Colleges and <u>u</u>Universitiesy individual and program courses that are not on thise approved list <u>may willstill</u> be accepted only if they meet the following criteria:

• <u>The courses must be</u> completed at a regionally accredited institution. <u>whether</u> located either in California or out-of-state.

Acceptable regional accrediting bodies are listed on the District's

<u>Only units earned from approved institutions and courses will List of Approved</u> Authorizations and Programs. Only approved units qualify for column advancement.__<u>These</u> <u>a</u>Approved units <u>will shall be calculated computed</u> on a semester unit basis. Regulations which apply to all College and University units:

a. Units accepted for salary advancement must meet one of the following criteria:

<u>i.b.</u> <u>Units are uUpper-division or Graduate Level Cc</u>ollege or <u>uUniversity</u> courses which are part of an advanced degree program related to education, curriculum, instruction, visual and performing arts, <u>communications, and or</u> content <u>-</u>specific courses <u>directly</u> related to the <u>teacher's current or prospective</u> assignment.

<u>ii</u>e. One or more Llower division <u>college or university</u> courses that are <u>applicable toward a bachelors degree and are directly related to:</u> may be taken during the year (September 1st through August 31st) if closely related to the major, minor, or teaching field.

1. Obtaining a supplemental authorization that expands the teacher's credentialed areas of instruction.

2. Enhancing instructional practices to the teacher's current or prospective assignment.

3. Meeting California state requirements for teaching in Transitional Kindergarten (TK) or enhancing instructional practices specific to TK.

iii. University units purchased after completion of professional development courses through Kern County Superintendent of Schools, or District authorized alternative.

bd. Courses requested, approved, and completed prior to October <u>1</u><u>15</u> of the current contract school year shall result in advancement effective for the full contract year. Courses requested, approved, and completed prior to March 1 shall result in advancement effective for the second half of the contract year. The same timeline applies to degrees and Certificate of Clinical Competence earned. Bargaining unit employees are responsible to ensure that the District receives notification (in a form satisfactory to the District) of units earned or degrees/clinical competence conferred.

2021-2024 P-BVUSD/ BOM hire will be placed on the appropriate Salary Schedule stephend of 2023

column based on units approved and completed up to Column VI. New hires are not eligible for placement on Column VII. in their first year of District employment. Effective with the start of the 2025-2026 school year, new hires are not eligible for placement on Column VII. To qualify for Column VII, General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers, and Academic Coaches must complete at least 15 units after their hire date and be currently employed with the District.

3. General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers, and Academic Coaches who are not on Column VI will have the option to complete a combination of approved semester unit equivalents of District Provided Professional Development ("DPPD"), or approved upper-division universities, colleges, or coursesCollege or University units, or programs on the approved list, for each column advancement, up to Column VI for a total of 12 units per column.

- a. Column I-VI require 12 units to advance, and Column VI to VII require 15 units to advance.
- b. Upon completion of the required number of units for column advancement, General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers and Academic Coaches must complete and submit the District's "Request for Advancement" form found on the District's Human Resources webpage.
- c. Any combination of college and university units can be submitted for column advancement. District Provided Professional Development units earned prior to March 1, 2025 can be used until June 30, 2027, for a one time submission for salary advancement. Unit members hired on or after January 31, 2025, will not be eligible for new DPPD units.
- d. <u>Any approved College or university</u> units may not be repeated for column advancement.
- e. In order to be eligible for column advancement, General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers and Academic Coaches must hold a preliminary or clear credential.
- f. e. General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers and Academic Coaches who earned approved units and submitted the Article XII D.4.A. -Unit Review Form to the District by June 30, 2019, and who have who began working for the District between August 2018 through June 2022, 75 combined Semester and DPPD units are eligible upon submission of the Human Resources Salary Advancement Request Form for salary advancement to Column VII using all unused units on file, effective March 1, 2025. whose current total units, both DPPD and University, are not equivalent to current Column placement, will be credited for salary advancement for all units on file not previously used to advance columns, up to Column VI, effective July 1, 2021.

Coaches who are eligible units between August 2019 and March 1, 2025, and who have 75 combined Semester and DPPD units are eligible upon submission of the Human Resources Salary Advancement Request Form for salary advancement to Column VII using all unused units on file, effective March 1, 2025.

Any bargaining unit members with units not previously credited towards salary advancement and not referenced in the previous two paragraphs (including any units earned prior to July 1, 2010) are not eligible for salary advancement to Column VII unless they qualify under the provisions in effect July 1, 2025.

4. General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers, and Academic Coaches who are on Column VI will be required to complete at least eight (8) DPPD semester unit equivalents in addition to seven (7) approved upper-division College or University units (total 15 units) to advance from Column VI to Column VII.

5. General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers, and Academic Coaches who have advanced to Column VII and who complete DPPD units thereafter shall be compensated at the extra duty hourly rate for each hour of attendance.

6. DPPD courses may have different numbers of in-class hours which shall be converted to equivalent semester units as follows:

- a. A full-day DPPD course of seven (7) in-class hours plus related follow-up activities, if required, is the equivalent of one semester unit. In-class hours do not include break-times, e.g., lunch.
- b. Courses of less than seven (7) in-class hours generate 1/7 DPPD unit per class hour plus related follow-up activities, if required.

7. The District agrees to maintain a collaborative work group to meet monthly to review pbvU course offerings, provide strategies for continuous improvement, and provide recommendations for the continued implementation of pbvU. There will be an equal distribution of work group members between P-BVTA members and District staff. Participation in this work group will be voluntary and not subject to additional compensation.

G. A bargaining unit member must complete at least 75% or more of their assigned annual work days within a fiscal year (July 1-June 30) in the same position for the bargaining unit member's step rate on the salary scheduled to move forward to the next step in the subsequent fiscal year.

<u>Mileage</u>

H. Bargaining unit employees who are required to use their personal vehicles in the performance of their job duties shall be entitled to receive mileage reimbursement at the rate established by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for business-related travel.

2021-2024 P-BVUSD/P-BVTA

To be eligible for mileage reimbursement, bargaining unit employees must have received prior approval from their supervisor for the use of their personal vehicle for official business. Mandatory meetings or work off site assigned by a supervisor will be considered to be pre-approved, and will not require additional approval.

Mileage reimbursement is only applicable for work-related travel and does not cover daily commuting to and from the employee's regular work site.

Bargaining unit employees shall submit mileage reimbursement claims in accordance with the established District procedures, including providing the necessary documentation, such as mileage logs, dates, and destinations. Claims must be submitted within 30 days or quarterly of the travel occurrence.

Errors in Compensation

I. In the event the District discovers an overpayment, it shall notify the bargaining unit employee in writing of the amount and the reason it occurred. In the event the bargaining unit employee notices an overpayment, they shall inform the District as soon as possible upon discovery. If the bargaining unit employee agrees with the overpayment notice, the bargaining unit employee shall sign a statement authorizing the repayment plan and return it to the District. Absent a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement, the District shall proceed with recoupment of the overpayment a minimum of thirty (30) <u>calendarwork</u> days after the initial written notification.

J. In the event a bargaining unit employee is underpaid wages or other compensation, the bargaining unit employee and the District have an obligation to inform the other as soon as the underpayment is discovered. The District will issue an off-cycle check in accordance with the off-cycle schedule, if not sooner, if the bargaining unit employee requests it.

ARTICLE XIII CONCLUSION

Completion of Negotiations

A. This Agreement represents complete collective bargaining and full agreement by the parties in respect to wages, hours of employment, and other terms and conditions of employment which shall prevail during the term or terms hereof. This Agreement supersedes and replaces the 2018-2021 Collective Bargaining Agreement, any and all other Memoranda of Agreement or Understanding, Side-Letters, and any other agreements, practices, or understandings (oral or written) entered into prior to the date of ratification of this Agreement unless the terms thereof are set forth in this Agreement.

1. The parties expressly waive and relinquish the right to meet and negotiate with respect to any subject or matter, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either party at the time they met and negotiated on and executed this Agreement and even though such subjects or matters may have been proposed and later were withdrawn. Exceptions to the terms of this paragraph are limited to Article I, paragraph C, Article IV, paragraph G, and paragraphs A.2, D.1, and/or D.2, of this Article.

2. The District agrees that it will not change any "term and condition of employment" as defined in Government Code §3543.2 without first notifying the Association of such intended change. The Exclusive Representative must make a written demand to bargain the effect of such a change. Following the written demand, the District agrees to meet and negotiate.

Scope of Agreement

B. It is understood and agreed that the powers and responsibilities to manage and control the operations and affairs of the District are reserved exclusively to the District and the Governing Board, except as they are by this Agreement expressly and specifically limited to the manner and to the extent authorized by law. It is understood and agreed that the specific conditions contained in this Agreement shall prevail over District practices and procedures and over state laws to the extent permitted by state law and that in the absence of specific provisions in this Agreement, such practices and procedures are discretionary on the part of the District.

Management Rights

C. It is agreed and understood that the District retains all rights, powers, prerogatives, privileges, duties, and authority vested in it by any source whatsoever, including the Constitution of the State of California, the Constitution of the United States, state and federal laws and regulations, and school district policies, to manage, to control, and to direct the operations and affairs of the District, and to take whatever action necessary to maintain operations in situations of emergency.

1. The exercise of the rights, powers, prerogatives, privileges, duties, and authority by the District, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the express terms of this Agreement.

2. The parties understand and agree that the exercise of District discretion in the implementation of any provision of this Agreement, when provided for in contract language, may yield a different result when applied to different bargaining unit employees based upon different facts.

Severability and Savings

D. In the event that any portion of this Agreement is found to be unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, the rest of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

1. Should a federal or state agency with jurisdiction invalidate any portion of this Agreement, the parties shall, on appropriate notice, meet to negotiate over the affected provision or provisions.

2. If the Legislature repeals or modifies sections of the Education Code relative to matters within the scope of representation, the District agrees to negotiate the effect of such modifications prior to implementing the provisions of any change.

No Strike or Concerted Activities

E. It is agreed and understood that strikes, work stoppages, "sick-ins," slow-downs, picketing in furtherance of a strike, work stoppage, etc., and the failure and/or refusal to faithfully and fully perform assigned job responsibilities and duties are contrary to the letter and spirit of this Agreement. The Association warrants that there will be no strike, work stoppage, slow-down or picketing in furtherance of a strike, or compliance with the request of other labor organizations to engage in such activities by the Association, its officers, agents, or members during the term of this Agreement.

1. The Association recognizes the obligation of its representatives to comply with the provisions of this clause and to make every reasonable effort toward inducing all bargaining unit employees to do so.

2. In the event of a strike, work stoppage, or slow-down by bargaining unit employees who are represented by the Association, the Association agrees to take good-faith steps to cause those bargaining unit employees to cease such action.

3. Leave shall not be allowed for bargaining unit employees engaged in any concerted activity.

RATIFICATION AND ACCEPTANCE

By their signatures below, the signatories certify that they are authorized representatives of either the District or the Exclusive Representative as the contracting parties; that all actions necessary for the District or Exclusive Representative to ratify and accept this Agreement as a binding and bilateral Agreement have been completed in the manner required by that party and the law and that this Agreement is hereby entered into without the need for further ratification and acceptance.

ACCEPTED: PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bryan Easter President, Board of Trustees

Keith Wolaridge Clerk, Board of Trustees

Date: 7/25/2024

ACCEPTED: PANAMA-BUENA VISTA TEACHERS ASSOCIATION/CTA/NEA

Sidola Curry

Victoria Curry (Jul 25, 2024 09:50 PDT)

Victoria Curry President, PBVTA

Michelle Johnson (Jul 25, 2024 10:07 PDT)

Michelle Johnson, CTA for Association

APPENDIX A

		Ocrain	cau	eu Gener	a)23		nu	al Salary	30	nedule		
						Job Class	JZ3	-24						Class
- - h Title					J								<u>J0</u>	JCIASS
ob Title					Job	Title								
	Class	room Teach	er			2001		Mus	ic Te	eacher - Eleme	enta	ıry		2122
Instru		TE Teacher Intervention	Teac	her		2021 2011				eacher- Jun i o nity Class Tea		•		2022 2003
morra		in konvorkion	·ouo			2011		Opp						2003
Vorking Days								Grade						
183 days		TH01		TH02		TH03		TH04		TH05		T H 06		TH07
STEP	С	OLUMN I		OLUMN II	С	OLUMNIII		OLUMN IV	C	OLUMNV	(COLUMN VI	C	OLUMN VI
		B.A.	E	3.A.+ 12		B.A.+ 24		B.A.+ 36	_	B.A.+ 48		B.A.+ 60		BA +75
1	\$	58,223	\$	60,162	\$	62,166	\$	64,235	\$	66,375	\$	68,585	\$	70,8
2	\$	60,262	\$	62,268	\$	64,343	\$	66,483	\$	68,698	\$	70,986	\$	73,3
3	\$	62,299	\$	64,373	\$	66,518	\$	68,733	\$	71,022	\$	73,386	\$	75,8
4	\$	64,337	\$	66,478	\$	68,692	\$	70,978	\$	73,344	\$	75,785	\$	78,3
5	\$	86,373	\$	68,584	\$	70,868	\$	73,228	\$	75,665	\$	78,186	\$	80,7
6	\$	86,373	\$	70,470	\$	72,815	\$	75,239	\$	77,745	\$	80,333	\$	83,0
7	\$	86,373	\$	72,354	\$	74,764	\$	77,255	\$	79,828	\$	82,464	\$	85,2
8	\$	86,373	\$	74,240	\$	76,710	\$	79,265	\$	81,906	\$	84,633	\$	87,4
9	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$	78,660	\$	81,278	\$	83,986	\$	86,782	\$	89,6
10	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$	80,545	\$	83,227	\$	85,998	\$	88,860	\$	91,8
11	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$	82,796	\$	85,554	\$	88,402	\$	9 1 ,346	\$	94,3
12	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$	82,796	\$	87,804	\$	90,727	\$	93,749	\$	96,8
13	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$	82,796	\$	87,804	\$	92,978	\$	95,998	\$	99,1
14	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$	82,796	\$	87,804	\$	92,978	\$	98,250	\$	101,5
15	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$	82,796	\$	87,804	\$	92,978	\$ 6	100,500	\$	103,8
16	\$ \$	86,373	\$ \$	76,126 76,126	\$ \$	82,796	\$ \$	87,804 87,804	\$	92,978 92,978	\$	102,750 104,999	\$ \$	106,1
17	э \$	86,373 86,373	۶ \$	76,126	ъ \$	82,796 82,796	э \$	87,804	э \$	92,978	э \$	104,999	n ⊌	108,4 110.8
18	э \$	86,373	\$ \$	76,126	э \$	82,796	э \$	87,804	э \$	92,978	۹ \$	107,231	р (5)	110,0
20	э \$	86,373	э \$	76,126	э \$	82,796	Գ	87,804	э \$	92,978	۹ \$	108,223	9 (5)	112,8
20	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	∳	82,796	\$	87,804	э \$	92,978	¢ \$	110,170	\$ \$	113,8
22	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	э (\$	82,796	₽	87,804	\$ \$	92,978	э \$	11 1 ,143	9 (S	114,8
23	\$	86,373	\$ \$	76,126	\$ \$	82,796	\$ \$	87,804	\$	92,978	\$	112,115	⇒ \$	115,8
24	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$ \$	82,796	\$ \$	87,804	\$ \$	92,978	\$	113,095	9 (5)	116,8
25	\$	86,373	\$	76,126	\$ \$	82,796	\$ \$	87,804	\$	92,978	э \$	1 14,083	\$ \$	117,8

\$1,200 additional compensation for Master's Degree (July 1,2023 - December 31,2023)
\$1,500 additional compensation for Master's Degree (Effective January 1,2024)
\$2,000 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (July 1,2023 - December 31,2023)
\$2,500 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (Effective January 1,2024)

	Certificated Special Education Teacher Annual Salary Schedule													
						20)23	3-24						
Job Class						Title Title						-	Jc	2034
Intensive	JassJ Mild/Moderate Intensive Intervention Center Teacher Mild/Moderate Dual				2030		1 2	Cla	erant Teacher ssMild/Modera s Moderate/Se				2034 2032 2028 2029	
Working Days 184 days		SP01		SP02		SP03		Grade SP04				SP06		SP07
STEP	C	OLUMN I	C	OLUMN II	(COLUMN III		COLUMN IV	(COLUMN V	(COLUMN VI	(COLUMN VII
SIEF		B.A.		B.A.+ 12		B.A.+ 24		B.A.+ 36		B.A.+48		B.A.+60		BA+75
1	\$	58,541	\$	60,490	\$	62,505	\$	64,586	\$	66,738	\$	68,959	\$	71,257
2	\$	60 592	\$	62,608	\$	64,695	\$	66,847	\$	69,074	\$	71,374	\$	73,751
3	\$	62,639	\$	64,725	\$	66,881	\$	69,1 08	\$	7 1 ,411	\$	73,787	\$	76,244
4	\$	64 689	\$	66 842	\$	69 067	\$	7 1 366	\$	73 745	\$	76199	\$	78 738
5	\$	66,736	\$	68,958	\$	71,256	\$	73,628	\$	76,078	\$	78,613	\$	81,230
6	\$	66,736	\$	70,855	\$	73,213	\$	75,650	\$	78,170	\$	80,772	\$	83,462
7	\$	66,736	\$	72,750	\$	75, 173	\$	77,678	\$	80,265	\$	82,935	\$	85,696
8	\$	66,736	\$	74,645	\$	77,130	\$	79,698	\$	82,354	\$	85,095	\$	87,929
9	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	79,090	\$	81,722	\$	84,445	\$	87,256	\$	90,161
10	\$	66,736	\$	76542	\$	80, 985	\$	83,681	s	86,468	\$	89,346	\$	92,323
11	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	86,022	\$	88,885	s	91,846	\$	94,904
12	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	s	91,223	\$	94,262	\$	97,40 ²
13	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	s	93,486	\$	96,523	\$	99,739
14	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88.284	\$	93,486	\$	98,787	\$	102,077
15	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	\$	93,486	\$	101,049	\$	104,413
16	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	\$	93,486	\$	103,312	\$	106,75
17	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	\$	93,486	\$	105,573	\$	109,090
18	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	\$	93,486	\$ \$	107,838	\$ \$	111,428
19	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$ \$	83,248	\$	88.284	≎ \$	93.486	\$ \$	108,815	≎ \$	112.438
20	э \$	66,736	э \$	76,542	ه \$	83,248	э \$	88,284	э \$	93,486	э \$	108,815	э \$	113,448
20	Ф \$	66,736	۰ ۶	76,542	9 (S	83,248	э \$	88,284	۹ \$	93,486	9 (5)	110,773	э \$	114,459
21	ъ \$	66,736	э \$	76542	۶ ≶	83,248	э \$	88,284	Р \$	93,486	ֆ Տ	111,751	₽ \$	115,473
					A \$				ъ \$	93,486	۶ \$	112 728		
23	\$	66,736	\$	76 542	-	83,248	\$	88 284			-		\$	116 483
24	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	\$	93,486	\$	113,713	\$	117,502
25	\$	66,736	\$	76,542	\$	83,248	\$	88,284	\$	93,486	\$	1 14,707	\$	118,530

\$1,200 additional compensation for Master's Degree (July 1, 2023- December 31,2023)
\$1,500 additional compensation for Master's Degree (Effective January 1, 2024)
\$2,000 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (July 1, 2023- December 31, 2023)
\$2,500 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (Effective January 1, 2024)

\$1,500 additional compensation for all SpecialEducation Teachers

Certificated Academic Coach Annual Salary Schedule						
2023-24						
Job Title	Job Class					
Academic Coach	2025					

Working Days				Grade			
186 days	AC01	AC02	AC03	AC04	AC05	AC06	AC07
0750	COLUMN I	COLUMN II	COLUMN III	COLUMN IV	COLUMN V	COLUMN VI	COLUMN VII
STEP	B.A.	B.A.+ 12	B.A.+ 24	B.A.+ 36	B.A.+48	B.A.+60	BA+75
1	\$ 65,062	2 \$ 67,033	\$ 69,070	\$ 71,173	\$ 73,349	\$ 75,594	\$ 77,916
2	\$ 67,13	5 \$ 69, 173	\$ 71,283	\$ 73,459	\$ 75,710	\$ 78,035	\$ 80,437
3	\$ 69,204	\$ 71,313	\$ 73,493	\$ 75,744	\$ 78,071	\$ 80,474	\$ 82,958
4	\$ 71,277	\$ 73,453	\$ 75,703	\$ 78,027	\$ 80,432	\$ 82,912	\$ 85,479
5	\$ 73,34	6 \$ 75,593	\$ 77,915	\$ 80,313	\$ 82,790	\$ 85,353	\$ 87,998
6	\$ 73,34	6 \$ 77,51 1	\$ 79,894	\$ 82,358	\$ 84,905	\$ 87,536	\$ 90,255
7	\$ 73,346	\$ 79,426	6 \$ 81,874	\$ 84,407	\$ 87,022	\$ 89,722	\$ 92,513
8	\$ 73,34	6 \$ 81,341	\$ 83,853	\$ 86,449	\$ 89,134	\$ 91,906	\$ 94,770
9	\$ 73,34	6 \$ 83,259	\$ 85,834	\$ 88,495	\$ 91,249	\$ 94,090	\$ 97,027
10	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 87,751	\$ 90,476	\$ 93,293	\$ 96,202	\$ 99,211
11	\$ 73,346	\$ \$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 92,842	\$ 95,736	\$ 98,729	\$ 101,820
12	\$ 73,34	6 \$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 98,100	\$ 101,17 1	\$ 104,344
13	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 103,457	\$ 1 06,708
14	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 105,745	\$ 109,072
15	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 108,033	\$ 111,433
16	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 1 10,319	\$ 113,797
17	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 112,606	\$ 116,160
18	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 114,894	\$ 118,524
19	\$ 73,346	\$ \$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 115,882	\$ 119,545
20	\$ 73,346	6 \$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 116,871	\$ 120,567
21	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 1 17,862	\$ 12 1 ,588
22	\$ 73,346	\$ \$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 118,850	\$ 122,613
23	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 119,838	\$ 123,634
24	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 120,834	\$ 124,664
25	\$ 73,346	\$ 83,259	\$ 90,038	\$ 95,128	\$ 100,387	\$ 121,838	\$ 125,701

\$1,200 additional compensation for Mastes Degree (July 1,2023- December 31,2023)
\$1,500 additional compensation for Mastes Degree (Effective January 1,2024)
\$2,000 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (July 1, 2023 - December 31,2023)
\$2,500 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (Effective January 1,2024)

Certificated Intervention Counselor Salary Schedule

2023-24

Job Title

Intervention Counselor

Job Class

1206

Step	Annual Salary
0	\$ 93,517
1	\$ 96,322
2	\$ 99,210
3	\$ 102,188
4	\$ 105,254
5	\$ 107,622
6	\$ 110,043
7	\$ 111,695
8	\$ 113,370

Working Days per Year: 196

\$2,000 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (July 1, 2023- December 31, 2023) \$2,500 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (Effective January 1, 2024)

Certificated Speech Language Pathologist Salary Schedule 2023-24 Job Title Job Class Speech Language Pathologist 2220

Step	Annual Salary
1	\$ 91,894
	91,094
2	\$ 94,062
3	\$ 96,283
4	\$ 98,558
5	\$ 100,888
6	\$ 103,274
7	\$ 105,716
8	\$ 108,217
9	\$ 110,776
10	\$ 113,400
11	\$ 116,086
12	\$ 118,835
13	\$ 121,652
14	\$ 124,535

Working Days per Year: 184

\$1,200 additional compensation for Certificate of Clinical Competence (July 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023)
\$1,500 additional compensation for Certificate of Clinical Competence (Effective January 1, 2024)
\$2,000 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (July 1, 2023- December 31, 2023)
\$2,500 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (Effective January 1, 2024)

Career Longevity Pay - District Service \$3,000 annually- beginning with the 11th year of service to the District \$6,000 annually - beginning with the 16th year of service to the District \$9,000 annually - beginning with the 21st year of service to the District

Certificated Speech Specialist Salary Schedule					
2023-24					
Job Title	Job Class				
Speech Specialist	2223				

Step	An	nual Salary
1	\$	84,176
2	\$	86,163
3	\$	88,196
4	\$	90,277
5	\$	92,408

Working Days per Year: 184

Certificated School Nurse Salary Schedule

2023-24

Job Title School Nurse Job Class

2206

Working Days per Year: 194

Step	Annual Salary
1	\$ 83,710
2	\$ 87,896
3	\$ 92,070
4	\$ 96,443
5	\$ 100,543
6	\$ 104,565
7	\$ 108,747
8	\$ 113,097

\$1,200 additional compensation for Master's Degree (July 1, 2023- December 31, 2023)
\$1,500 additional compensation for Master's Degree (Effective January 1, 2024)
\$2,000 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (July 1, 2023- December 31, 2023)
\$2,500 additional compensation for Doctorate Degree (Effective January 1, 2024)

Career Longevity Pay - District Service

\$1,000 annually- beginning with the 11th year of service to the District \$1,500 annually- beginning with the 16th year of service to the District \$2,000 annually- beginning with the 21st year of service to the District

APPENDIX B

ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION & CERTIFICATED EXTRA DUTY WORK

Additional Compensation

Bargaining unit employees will be paid additional compensation for the following sitebased assignments, regardless of the bargaining unit employee's base salary. Additional compensation shall be paid in equal payments over time as the work is performed.

- Battle of the Books \$625.00 History Day Coordinator \$625.00 Two stipends at Elementary: one for 3rd grade and one for 4th-6th grade One stipend for Junior High
- Induction/Intern Support Provider
 - \$2,500.00 Per Candidate
 - Limit of <u>three (3) two (2)</u> Candidates)
- Junior High AVID Coordinator -\$1,500.00
- Math Counts \$625.00
- STEM Olympiad Coordinator \$625.00
- Oral Language Festival Coordinator \$625.00
- Science Fair Coordinator \$625.00
- Special Education Site Facilitator \$1,800.00
- Special Education Teacher- \$1,500.00
- Student Success Team (SST) Coordinator \$2,500.00 (Non-Academic Coach)
 - If a site only has one (1) Academic Coach, and a second SST Coordinator is not assigned, the campus's Academic Coach will assume all the SST Coordinator responsibilities and receive the additional compensation of \$2,500.00.
- Speech Pathologist Support for Speech Pathologist Practicum Students, Speech Specialists, or Speech Pathologists in their Clinical Fellow Year (CFY)-\$750.00 (per semester)
- 6th Grade Teacher who accompanies class to Camp KEEP \$100.00 per day spent overnight.
- Jr. High Teacher:
 - Assigned teaching in lieu of prep period --- additional 1/7 of annual
 - salary_daily rate* for each day taught.
 - Substitute teaching on prep period 1/7 of daily rate* for each day taught.
 - (*) Daily rate is calculated based on the Teacher's placement on the salary schedule divided by the number of days in the work year.
- School Psychologists who supervise Interns or Practicum Students will receive an additional compensation of \$750 per semester.

Certificated Extra Duty Work

The Contract Hourly Rate for Certificated Extra Duty work is based upon Column VI, Step 10 of the Certificated General Education Teacher Salary Schedule (Appendix A-1.2). Certificated Extra duty pay shall be paid as the work is performed and is paid for the following extra duty work:

- Authorized extra duty during or outside of the school year.
- District Provided Professional Development units (applies only to General Education Teachers, Special Education Teachers, and Academic Coaches on Column VII).
- District-authorized Intramural lunchtime activities.
- Scheduled IEP meetings that extend beyond the Teacher's daily 7.5 contract hours:
 - Special Education Teachers to a maximum of 65 hours per school year.
 - General Education Teachers to a maximum of 25 hours per school year.
 - If required, Teachers will be paid for hours required outside of their daily 7.5 contract hours beyond these maximum limits so long as advance written permission is obtained from the Teacher's administrative supervisor.
- Summer School or Extended School Year Teacher
- Other assignments as set forth in this Agreement, or any assignments which require work beyond the designated work year or workday for which the compensation is not otherwise set forth in this agreement.
- School Psychologists will be compensated at their individual hourly rate for any scheduled IEP required Meetings that extend beyond the School Psychologists daily 8.5 contract hours, to a maximum of 65 hours per school year.
- Attendance at CPI and Pro-ACT training outside of duty hours; School Psychologists will timecard for the time spent attending CPI and Pro-ACT training outside of duty hours.

Extra Duty Pay Hourly Rate Calculation

For purposes of extra duty pay, the hourly rate for all bargaining unit members is calculated based on Column VI Step 10 of the Certificated General Education Teacher Annual Salary Schedule in effect when the work is performed divided by 183 days and 7.0 hours, as follows:

2023-2024 - \$88,860 ÷ 183 (days) ÷ 7.0 (paid hours per day) = \$69.37

APPENDIX C

TERMS DEFINED

For the purposes of this Agreement, the terms below are defined as follows:

<u>"Academic Coach"</u> means any bargaining unit employee who is compensated on the Certificated Academic Coach Salary Schedule (Appendix A-3).

<u>"Additional Compensation"</u> means any wages paid in addition to the position's base salary that may require time accounting based on funding source.

<u>"Approved Units"</u> means those units earned beyond the number of units credited upon commencement of District employment that have been approved by the District.

<u>"Co-Teaching/Taught"</u> means a general education teacher and a special education teacher working together in the same classroom to jointly plan, instruct, and assess general education and special education students.

"Day" means a workday for employees covered by this Agreement.

<u>"Employee"</u> is the aggregate designation of all employees in the certificated bargaining unit; also collectively referred to as "bargaining unit employees."

<u>"Extra Duty Pay"</u> is additional compensation for any authorized hours worked by bargaining unit employees beyond the designated work year or workday and is calculated based on Column VI, Step 10 of the Certificated General Education Teacher Annual Salary Schedule.

<u>"General Education Teacher"</u> means any bargaining unit employee who is compensated on the Certificated General Education Teacher Annual Salary Schedule (Appendix A-1).

<u>"Grievant"</u> means the Exclusive Representative or a bargaining unit employee or employees.

"Hire date" means an employee's first day of paid service to the District.

<u>"Immediate family"</u> means the employee's (a) child (biological, adoptive, foster, step, legal ward, or to whom the employee stands in loco parentis) regardless of age or dependency status, (b) parent (biological, adoptive, foster, step, legal guardian, or person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor) of the employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, (c) spouse, (d) registered domestic partner, (e) grandparent, (f) grandchild, (g) sibling. An employee who claims any benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement must have valid proof of the registered domestic partnership on file with the District.

<u>"Immediate Supervisor"</u> means the administrator or manager having immediate jurisdiction over a bargaining unit employee.

"Intervention Counselor" means any bargaining unit employee who is compensated on the Certificated Intervention Counselor Salary Schedule (Appendix A-4).

<u>"Preparation Period or Preparation Time"</u> means on-campus time available during the regular work day that is scheduled for Teachers to engage in professional activities related to their assignment.

<u>"Reassignment"</u> means a change in grade level or subject area assignment within a school.

<u>"School Nurse</u>" means any bargaining unit employee who is compensated on the Certificated School Nurse Salary Schedule (Appendix A-7).

<u>"Special Education Teacher"</u> means any bargaining unit employee who is compensated on the Certificated Special Education Teacher Annual Salary Schedule (Appendix A-2).

<u>"Speech Pathologist</u>" means any bargaining unit employee who is compensated on the Certificated Speech Pathologist Salary Schedule (Appendix A-5).

<u>"Speech Specialist"</u> means any bargaining unit employee who is compensated on the Certificated Speech Specialist Salary Schedule (Appendix A-6).

<u>"Teacher"</u> includes any General Education Teacher or Special Education Teacher, unless otherwise specified within the Agreement.

<u>"Transfer"</u> means a change of location from one school to another school.

<u>"Vacancy</u>" means an unfilled position for which a current, working bargaining unit employee may apply.

APPENDIX D

pbvU EXTRA DUTY PAY FORMULAS

pbvU compensation for bargaining unit employees participating in pbvU is subject to change based on the needs of the instructional program/pbvU, and/or receipt of funding. The extra duty hourly rate applies to all compensation formulas.

<u>PDLT Leads:</u> Leadership responsibilities per learning cycle (Fall, Winter, Spring, Summer) - up to 10 hours.

<u>Professional Development Leadership Teams:</u> PDLT members directly involved with course development will receive up to 14 hours per learning cycle (Fall, Winter, Spring, Summer).

Curriculum Developer:

1. For new pbvU choice blended or online courses - up to 28 curriculum development hours may be earned (or 14 hours per person for a team of two, one of whom must be the Instructor).

2. For new pbvU choice traditional courses - up to 21 curriculum development hours may be earned (or 10.5 hours per person for a team of two, one of whom must be the Instructor).

3. For repeat pbvU choice courses in a different format (Traditional to Blended OR Blended to Online) - the instructor may earn up to 14 curriculum development hours.

4. For repeat pbvU choice courses in the same format (Traditional, Blended, or Online) - the instructor may earn up to 7 curriculum development hours.

5. For pbvU essential courses - the ratio of three (3) curriculum development hours for every hour of instruction will be used. For example, if developing a 7-hour essential course up to 21 hours may be earned in total by the team (10.5 hours per person for a team of two).

Instructors:

1. pbvU instructors will be compensated one District-Provided Professional Development ("DPPD") unit for each unique pbvU course when the instructor is also the facilitator. The DPPD unit is earned through the facilitation role. (See Facilitator Compensation Formula.)

2. If an instructor is not earning a DPPD unit for the course, they will be compensated for their time of instruction (Instructor hours) up to seven (7) hours as determined by pbvU administration.

3. pbvU instructors will be allowed curriculum development hours in addition to earning one (1) pbvU DPPD unit in preparation for the course. (See the Curriculum Development Compensation Formula.) 4. If a pbvU instructor repeats a course they previously taught, they will not receive a DPPD unit. In lieu of the DPPD unit, up to seven (7) instructor hours and the curriculum development hours relevant to the course type will be earned as determined by pbvU administration. However, if the instructor is also the facilitator, they will receive up to 14 hours after the course instruction and follow-up activities are completed.

Facilitators:

1. pbvU facilitators will be compensated one (1) pbvU DPPD unit for each unique course facilitated.

2. If a pbvU facilitator repeats a course previously facilitated, they will be compensated up to 21 hours (seven (7) hours for the course "seat-time" and 14 hours for facilitation) as determined by pbvU administration. The facilitator will not receive curriculum development hours when facilitating a repeated course.

Presenters:

1. pbvU presenters will be compensated equivalent to the hours they deliver content.

2. Presenters will also be compensated two (2) hours for preparation per hour of content delivery for each unique presentation.

3. If a presenter repeats a presentation, they will be compensated .5 hours for preparation per hour of content delivery for each repeat presentation.

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTTICT GRIEVANCE FORM- LEVEL ONE THIS FORM MUST BE FILLED OUT <u>COMPLETELY.</u>

A Level One Grievance must be filled within twenty (20) days of the alleged violation. Grievant: To: Work Location: Date of alleged violation: Immediate Supervisor:
Date of alleged violation: Immediate Supervisor:
Specific Article(s) or section(s) violated:
Synopsis of events resulting in Alleged Violation: (attached separate sheet if necessary)
Synopsis of informal conference:
Specific Remedy Requested:
(Grievant Signature) (Date)
(Must be signed and dated by person receiving the Grievance.)
Level One Grievance received by: (Immediate Supervisor) Filing Date:
(Date Grievance Received)
NOTE: If a written decision to the grievance is not issued within ten (10) days of the date this grievance was receive the grievance is denied and the grievant may appeal to Level Two. The appeal must be filled within ten (1 days of the Level One Denial.
(THIS PORTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR.)
Immediate Supervisor's Decision: Grievance Denied 🗆 Resolved 🗆
Date Decision/Response Given to Grievant:
(Attach copy of written Decision/Response and submit to Superintendent's Office.)
(Immediate Supervisor's Signature)

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTTICT GRIEVANCE FORM- LEVEL TWO

Grievance Number: _____

A Level Two written appeal to the Superintendent of Designated Grievance Representative must be filled within ten (10) days of a denial at Level One or the deadline within which the Level One Decision was to be made.

Grievant:				
То:	Imme			
(Superintendent)				
Reason for Appeal:				
(Grievant/Representative Sig			(Date	<u></u>
(Grievant/ Representative Sign	lature)		(Dati	=)
NOTE: COPIES OF ALL MATERIAL UTILIZE	d in level of	NE MUST BE	ATTACHE	D.
(Must be signed and dated by person rec	oiving the Lov		aal)	
	eiving the Levi		<u>zai.)</u>	
Level Two Appeal received by:	(Superinter	ident or Des	signated Gr	ievance Representative)
	(00)0000			
Filing Date:	(Data of Po	ceipt of App		
	(Date of Re	ceipt of App	Jear	
NOTE: Within ten (10) days after the decision shall be transmitted to Grie within ten (10) days after this conferto Level Three. The appeal must be filled	evant. If a w rence, the gr	vritten dec rievance is	ision to t denied ar	his grievance is not issued nd the grievant may appeal
(This Portion for Superintendent's Office	Use Only)			
Date of Conference:				
Level Two Decision: Grievance Denied	d 🗆 Res	solved \Box	No Reply	
Date of Response to Grievant:	(Att	ach copy of	response.)	

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTTICT GRIEVANCE FORM- LEVEL THREE

Grievance Number: _____

The parties shall request the services of a mediator from the California State Conciliation Service within five days following written notice from the grievant that he/she is not satisfied with the decision at Level Two. The parties shall attempt to mediate a settlement of the grievance. In no instance will the form or matter of the discussion and/or proposals during the mediating process be revealed. Only the terms of a settlement, if any, may be revealed.

Grievant:	Work Location:
To	
(Board of Trustees)	
Reason for Appeal:	
(Grievant/Representative Sig	gnature) (Date)
NOTE: COPIES OF ALL MATERIALS UTILIZ	ZED IN PRIOR LEVELS MUST BE ATTACHED.
(Must be signed and dated by person red	ceiving the Level Two Appeal.)
Lovel Three Appeal received by	
Level Three Appeal received by:	(Superintendent or Designated Grievance Representative)
Filing Date:	
2	(Date of Receipt of Appeal)

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTTICT GRIEVANCE FORM- LEVEL FOUR

Grievance Number: _____

In the event the Association is not satisfied with the result at Level Three, it may, within five days of completion of the Level Three proceedings, submit the grievance to arbitration through the American Arbitration Association. If the grievant is satisfied with the result at Level Four, or any prior level, the Exclusive Representative is barred from instituting the arbitration procedure.

I am not satisfied with the result at Level Three. I request this grievance proceed to arbitration.

Grievant:		Work Location:		
То:				
(Superintenc				
(Grievant/Rep	resentative Signature)	(Date)		
(Must be signed and dated	d by person receiving the	<u>Level Two Appeal.)</u>		
Level Four Appeal	received by:			
	(Superin	ntendent or Designated Grievance Representative)		
Filing Date:				
	(Date o	f Receipt of Appeal)		

NOTE: COPIES OF ALL MATERIALS UTILIZED IN PRIOR LEVELS MUST BE ATTACHED.

Panama-Buena Vista Union School District 4200 Ashe Road • Bakersfield, CA 93313 (661) 831-8331 • fax (661) 398-2141

Temporary Provisional/ Emergency Credential Probationary Permanent

CERTIFICATED EVALUATION PROCESS

PERFORMANCE NOTIFICATION

Teacher_____

School

Grade Level and/or Assignment

Part 1: Written Improvement Plan

This form is to be completed by a certificated employee's evaluator if the evaluator has determined that the employee needs improvement in meeting or does not meet standards in the areas of instruction and/or teaching methods.

1. Specific area(s) where employee "needs improvement in meeting standards" or "does not meet standards":

Specific recommendations as to area(s) of improvement in the employee's performance (Written 2. Improvement Plan):

Evaluator's signature	Date
Employee's signature*	Date

*The employee's signature indicates receipt of this notification and does not necessarily indicate agreement.

Panama-Buena	Vista	Union	School	District
4200 Ashe Ro	oad • B	akersfi	eld, CA	93313
(661) 831-8	3331 •	fax (66	1) 398-2	2141

 Temporary
 Provisional/ Emergency Credential
 Probationary
 Permanent

CERTIFICATED EVALUATION PROCESS

PERFORMANCE NOTIFICATION

Teacher	School
Grade Level and/or Assignment	
Part 2: Results of Written Improvement Plan	
Implementation Date of Written Improver	ment Plan:
Results after four-week implementation of Written	Improvement Plan:
Evaluator's signature	Date
Employee's signature*	Date
*The employee's signature indicates receipt of agreement.	this notification and does not necessarily indicate

APPENDIX G-1

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED TRANSFER OR REASSIGNMENT FORM

Date	
Present Grade	
ry Reassignment)	
ite (Voluntary Transfer)]
ons shall be based on the pargaining agreement. Please n; attach additional sheet, if need pecial authorizations held at the	answer ded: time
periences you have that you fee ss the stated educational and p	
t to being accepted for this posit	tion.
	Present Grade y Reassignment) [ite (Voluntary Transfer) [ons shall be based on the argaining agreement. Please ; attach additional sheet, if need becial authorizations held at the periences you have that you feels s the stated educational and p

APPENDIX G-2

PANAMA-BUENA VISTA UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED TRANSFER*/REASSIGNMENT** FORM IF AN OPENING BECOMES AVAILABLE AFTER THE LAST DAY OF SCHOOL

Name_____

Date _____

Present School _____ Present Grade _____

***TRANSFER** – MOVE FROM ONE SCHOOL SITE TO ANOTHER **REASSIGNMENT – CHANGE GRADE LEVEL AT PRESENT SCHOOL SITE

I would like to be considered for any grade level position at the school site(s) listed below should they become available during the period between the last school workday and July 15 of this year.

	SPECIFY GRADE		SCHOOL	
1 ST CHOICE				
2 ND CHOICE				
3 RD CHOICE				

NOTE: All voluntary transfer and reassignment decisions shall be based on the criteria described in Article IX, Paragraph C.1 of the collective bargaining agreement. Please answer the following questions to aid the district in its determination; attach additional sheet if needed:

1. Please describe any and all credentials and/or special authorizations held at the time of applying for the position.

Please address any relevant training and/or experiences you have that you feel make you qualified for the position. Make sure to address the stated educational and program needs described in the position posting.

3. Please address anything else you feel is relevant to being accepted for this position.

519-22/7163823.1